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INDEPENDENT AUDNTOR'S REFORT
TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF BT LEASING TRANSILVANIA IFN §A

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Our opinion
In our apinien,

. the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A4_ (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries
{together the *Group”) as at 31 Decemnber 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and 1ts consolidated cash flows for the vear then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards a= adopted by the European Union (*IFRE")
andl the National Bank of Romania (“NBR"] Order &,/2015 “for approving acoounting
Regulations in accordance with European directives” and subsequent amendments (*NBR
Order &/20157); and

. the separate financial statements give a troe and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 Decemnber 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the vear then ended in accordance with IFRS.

O apinion is consiztent with cur additional report to the Company’s Andit Cornmittes.
What we have audited

The Group's conselidated Anancial statements and the Company's separate financial statements
icollectively the “financial statements™) comprise:

. the Consolidated and Separate Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income: for the year ended 31 December 2i018;
" the Consolidated and Separate Statements of Financial Pozition as at 31 December 2013:
. the Consolidabed and Separate Statements of Changes in Equity for the vear ended
31 December 2018;
. the Consolidated and Separate Staterments of Cash Flows for the vear ended
41 December 2018; and
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. the notes by the consolidated and separate financial statements, which include significant
aceounting polices and other explanatory information.

The consolidated financial statements as 8t 31 December 2018 are dentified as follows:

- Total equity: ROM 167 540,200,
] Profit for the vear: RON = B85 88s.

The separate financial statements as ot 31 December 2018 are identified as follows:

. Total equaity: RON 159,652,467;
¥ Profit for the year: KON 20,791,460,

The Company’s registeved office is in Cluj-Napoca, Chaj, 74-76 Constantin Brincug Sireet,
Romania and the Company's unigue fiscal registration code is RO7424118.

Basis for opinion

We condocted aur audit in accordanes with International Standards on Auditing ["15A:7),
Regulation (EU) Mo 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council {"the Regulation”)
and Law Mo 162/ 2017 "regarding statutory audit of annual financial statements and annual
consalidated financial statements and regarding changes to other regulations”

(“the Law 162/2017"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
*Anditar's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our repor,

We beliove that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion,

Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“TESBA Code™) and
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our andit of the financial statements in Romania,
mncluding the Regulation and the Law 1622017, We have fulfilled our other responsibilities in
pecordance with thess requirements and [ESEA Code.

Tn the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that no services other than audit were provided
ter the Group and the Company from 1 January 2008 up to the date of this report.
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Our audit approach
U AR T T

E¥vseen M pevantesraatlinig

EOM 9.2 milkion for both consolidated and separate finaneial
satements,

Lo pLLRF S CORpRTRTY

We planned and scoped our audit for 2018 reflecting the Group's
current structure whereby the Company represents practically all
the Group's assets, liabilities and net interest income and
approximately Bo% of profit before tax. Hence, we defined the
Giranig Company as the sole significant component within the Group and so
eI we have performed a full scope audit of its financial information.

Wit rdar iy

3 |'-.1'|r-|rul'r| e rs
Rey audit »  Application of IFRS g *Financial Instruments” in the
calculation of expected credit loss ("ECL") allowances for

finance lease receivables.

This was congidered key audit matter for both the andit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements,

L FTRLAY ¥ |'||||I.|I||;

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of materdal
misstatemnent in the financial statements, In particolar, we considered where management made
subjective judgements, for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all our
audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among
other matters, eonsideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of

material misstatement due to fraud,

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform enough work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, taking into account the
structure of the Group and of the Company, the accounting processes and controlz, and the
indugtry in which the Group and the Company operate.
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We planned and scoped our audit for 2018 reflecting the Group's current structare whereby the
Company represents the vast majority of the Group's assets (more than 9g%), habilities (almuost
100%]), net interest income {almost 100%) and profit before tax (approximately 30%). Hence, we
defined the Company as the sole significant component within the Group and so this was subject to
an audit of the complete financial information, We also applied analytical procedures to the
financial information of the remaining components of the Groap,

Wonberrinleiy

The seope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An sudit is designed to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
Misstatements may arise due to fravd or error. They are eonsidered material if individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decigions of users taken
based on the financial statements,

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality, including the overall materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out in the
table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of
our audit and the nature, iming and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstaternents, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole,

Overall materiality ROM 9.2 million for both consolidated and separate financial
statements,

How we determined it Approximately 1% of finance leass receivables as per the
Separate and Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at

31 Degember 2018,
Rationale for the Although the Company 15 profit-oriented itz results have been
materiality benchmark  volatile, Moreover, finance lease recelvables is used as one of the
applied indicator of size for ranking leasing companies. Considering

those elements, a5 well as the Company's objective of having &
stable and controlled market growth, we assessed that finance
lease recetvables are the most relevant benchmark for the year
ended 31 December 2018, We chose 1%, which i an acceptable
gquantitative materiality threshold for this benchmark.

Warrg ol il priidd faies

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most zignificance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current perjod, These matters were addressed in the
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context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do nd provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Eiy nudit matter

How our audil sddressed the
beey mudit musttor

Application of IFRS g “Financial Instruments” in the
calculation of expected credit loss (“ECL"™)
allowanees for finance lease receivables

We focused on this area because this iz a new and complex
accounting standard requiring the management to implement
new models and procedures, In addition, these models and
calculations require the management to make complex and
subjective judgemnents over both the iming of recognition of
ECL and the estimation of the size of ECL.

Om 1 .January 2018, IFRS 9 was adopted by the Group and
replaced the previously applied IAS 39 for credit loss
allowance of finance lease recoivables (which is still applied
in the financial statements for the 2017 comparative period),
Under IFRS g, the basis of creating expected credit loss
allowances is significantly different from the previous
standard and the new disclosure requirenents are also
significantly different. Therefore, we focused on the design
and application of the new comprehensive ECL models
introduced by the management which comply with IFRS g.

The Group and the Company use the simplified approach to
determine expected credit loss allowance, an approach
allowed for receivables from finance lease agreements in
accordance with IFRS g,

According to the simplified approach, the impairment
calculation for lease recaivables is done at full lifetime
expected credit losses (as there is no stage 1.

For non-significant finance lease receivables classified in
Stage 2, the assessment of the expected credit loss allowance
is performed collectively, with the key assumptions being the
probability of an account falling into arrears and

In relation to the implementation
of the new ECL models for
Mmessuring impairment we
assessed the appropriateness of
the key assumptions used in the
methodologies and models of the
Grroup and their compliance with
the principles and requirements
of [FRS 9. We engaged our credit
risk technical experts to assist us
in undertaking this azsessment.

Given that the Company holds
100% of the Group's total balance
of inance lease receivables, we
have get out below the specifics of
how we responded to this key
audit matter in the Company,

We assessed and tested on a
sample basis the design and
operating effectiveness of key
controls over ECL data and
ealeulitions.

These include those controls
performed by the Company’s
management to ensure that the
input datz on finance lease
receivables are correct, that the
reimbursements are appropriately
allocated to the correct balances
and that the approval of the
finance leases is done according to
the internal procedures.
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Koy nudit matier

How our audil addressed thio

aubsequently defaulting, exposure at the moment of default
and the estimated recoveries from defaulted receivables,

For Stage 3 lease receivables the expected credit losses are
based on the lifetime, with the probability of default being
100%,

For individually significant receivables from finance loase
contracts classified in Stage 3, the expected credit hsses are
azzessed individually based on probability weighted scenarios
of cash flow forecasts. The key assimptbons here are the
expected cash flows (from both operating cash flows and
recoveries from eollateral} and the weighting attached to the
different scenntios.

As this is the first year of adoption of IFRS ¢, there is limited
experience available to back-test the charge for ECL with
actual results, There is also a significant increase in the
number of data inputs required for the impairment
caleulation. This increases the risk around completeness and
pecuracy of certain data used to create assumptions and
operate the models,

Mote 3 — “Significant accounting policies”, Note 4 -
“Financial risk management”, and Note 5 = “Accounting
estimates and significant judgments” to the financial
statements provide detailed information on the ECL for
finance lease receivables and the effect of adoption of new
ECL models,

key nudit matter

We verified the reconciliation of
the cutput of the ECL caleulation

W tested the adequacy of the
probability of default and of the
loss given default for the entive
portfolio, including by
recalculating the parameters
haszed on the same historical data
sets used by the Company,

We tested the application of the
default definition and tested, on a
af the default flagging for the
finance loase contracts,

For individually assessed lnans,
we tested, on a sample hasis, the
approval of the key inputs and
assumptions such as discount
rutes used, estimated recoveries
frosmn collateral, and type and
weighting attached to the
different forecast scenarios,

Reporting on other information including the Consolidated Administrators’ Report

The Administrators are responsible for other information, The other information comprises
Consolidated Administrators’ Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon, We obtained the other information prior to the date of this auditor's

report,
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Our opinicn on the financial statements does not cover the other information, including the
Consolidated Administrators’ Repaort,

In connection with our audit of the financial staternents, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in daing so, consider whether the other information is materiaily
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the andit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

With respect to the Consolidated Administrators’ Report, we read it and we report whether this was
prepared in all material respects, in accordance with NBR Order 62015 article 294.

Based exclusively on the work undertaken in the course of our audit of the financial statements, in
O O nbn

. the infurmation given in the Consolidated Administrators’ Report for the financial vear for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent, in all material respects, with the
financial statements:

= the Consolidated Administrators’ Report has been prepared, in all material respects, in

accordance with NBR Order &/2015 article 234,

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and its
environment ohitained in the course of the avdit of the financial statements for the nancial vear
ended 31 December 2018, we are requined to report if we have identified material misstatements in
the Consolidated Administrators” Report, We have nothing to report in this respect.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
financial statements

Management is responzible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a trus and fair
view in accordance with IFRS and the NBR Order 6/2015 and with the aceounting policies
presented in the Note 3 to the financial statements, and for such internal control as management
determines 2 necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that ace free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eeror.

In prepaning the financial statements, management s responsible for assessing the Group's and
Company's ability to continue as a going eoneern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concermn and using the going concern basiz of accounting unbess management either intends to
liguidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative bat to do
B
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Thase Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Company’s
financial reporting process,

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether die to faud o efror, and o ssee an auditor's
repart that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranee is a high level of assurance, but is not a
puarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists,

Misstatemenks can arise from fraed or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I8As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

. Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
duwe 1o Fraud or ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that iz sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from frowd is higher than for
one reaulting from error, as fraud may mvodve collusion, forgery, inkentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the dreumstances, but not for the purpose of mopressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's or Company’s internal controf.,

" Fvaluate the appropriateness of sccounting polivies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropristeness of management’s uze of the geing concern basis of
aceounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to conlinue as a going coneern. If we conclude that a matenal uncertainty exists, we
are required o draw attention in our auditor's report to the related dischosures in the
financial statements or, if such diselosures are madequate, to madify our opinion. Cur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's repart.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to
continwe 85 @ FOi0g COneermn.
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, strocture and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underiying
transactions and events in o manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Ohbtain sufficient appropriate andit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, superviston and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opindon.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned ecope and timing of the pudit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Thooe Charged with Governance with i statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of moat significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless lew or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repart because the adverse
consequences of doing 50 would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest benefits of
such eommunieation,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

\pprrambimeni

We were first appointed as finandal auditors of the Company at the Ordinary General Shareholders
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Meeting on 5 May 2016, The total period of uninterrupted engagement appointment is 3 vears
covering the financial vears ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ana-Maria
Botueam,

Refer to the original
signed Romanian version

Anz-Mara Botuear

Finaneial avditor

registerad with the Public Electronic Register of financial auditors and andit firms under no.
AF3378

Oy beehadf oof
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit SRL
401-311 Barbu Vichrescu Street, Buchorest

Andit firm
registered with the Public Electronic Register of financial auditors and audit firms under no, FAG

Bucharest, 18 October 2015
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A,

Consolidated and Separate Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended on 31 December

= e KW -
l.';mup Company
2017 2017
Notes 2018 adjusted 2018 adjusted
Intesest incomae 7b,663,190 56029395 7647080 56,020,305
Interest expense {19,066,626) (10,757,152} (19,066,626) (10.757,152]
Netinterest ineome B i z 2
Fee and commissian income 0434023 15R.5RL 1,007, 70 155551
Fee and commission expense {202,524) (270,712} {272,794} {zpo, 13}
Met fee and commission
income, (expense) o 9,141,500 [115,164) TAE 00 {115,161)
Net gain/{loss) from foreign currency
translation L] hagLoz7 3236046  3.3010u7 3,236,946
Ceher operating incoms ] 4,372 Hif 477,046 B ez, 77706
Revenue from sale of aasets previously
[eazed to customers 10 1,625,146 863,700 1,A25,146 Bha, 700
Cost of inventory/fassels repossessed from
lease agreements 10 (2,138,q03) (675,741}  [2,138,403) (675741}
Met impairment charges of Ananeial
assats 1 (r7.446,343) (2668,749) {(17.446,343) (12,668,749
Netincomefexpensa relating to provisions 12 (71,21R) (f14,605) (71,218) (614, 545]
Personnel expenses 13 (15,641,055) (12,848,490} (14,817,702) (12,848,490)
Depreciation expense 22,09 (8439490  (Bzq727)  (834,878) (B34.727)
Other operating expenses 14 (8,052,013}  (6476427) (7.735932)  (6,476.427)
Profit before tax 31,934,083 sgubog5; 8780154 25,116,045
Income tax (expense)/eredil 15 o5L802  (3.221,761) O3NS (3,221,961)
Net profit for the year 32,885 885 19,894,274 1,46 1. 84,2
Other comprehensive income - = - z
Total comprehensive income 3=, BB BBs 19,894,274 29,791,469 19,894,274
Profit of the Group attributable to:
Chmers of the Company 32,884,359  1wBoq27d 20700460 10,804,974
Nﬂl!-mﬂl’ﬂ]“n,g'in!mﬂl‘s | E:ﬁ - = -
The finaneial statements were approved by the Board of Divectors on 17 October 2019 and were signed on its
behalf by;
Tomut Calin Morar Sabina Moldovan

General Managu‘r:( Financial Manager
!
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Consolidated and Separate Statement of Financial Position
For the year ended on 31 December

Ag ot 3 December

Angels

Cash on hasd
Plzcemesis with banks
Flnanos bease recoivahles
(iher finameinl assels
InvemMory

Fopmily imvestiments
Preeniies and squipents
Indangible sssets

Current by pssels
Deferred lax assels

Urther pssels
Total assels

Liahdlittes

Loans From banke and other fimancdal

imstil il

Provisicns for Rabilitles nnd charges

Other fngneial Habilitics
Oitleer liabdlilias

Tutal labdiftes

Eguity

Share capital

Logal reserves and oller reserves
Hetamed eamings

Total equity attributable to
Company’s owners
Mon=coatrolling intenest

Total eubty

Total Habilities and equity

= i RO -
Group Comipany

Mute 2018 27 eaid 2oL
adjusted adjusted

if Eaa 2,183 4, 4B 2,083
] g86g208 25,930,509 8,013,860 2930500
if 0BG, 2H0,049 74,248,844 L R e T T2 Ban
19 9,563,886 5404974 o Gel Tz B9H074
T 7799443 7630839 FF09443 7,630,835
T 1 60,510 B 540 G590
EE Ll 38,134 1 At5.02g 148,109 1,BER629
2y a0 b se.500 o, 257 52506
A1 7, 5t - 000,245 .

15 4,544,508 1,925,250 3495624 15095, 250
g 29,204 e filn Jaz016 e e
2RR. EHE g zfl 2 i g

ug TG, 030 foz, 260,237 Pl BT Graz, 263,237
af q, 750, God 2,428,527 a0z, 708 .40, 527
a7 a6, a6 20115437 13, D4a SU IS ART
P 9.4 3,064 LB53.782 A0, 830 __hBea 8z
05,986 6 7Ho fig4.ae5  GES,053,083

zq ST 544 45,800,500 BiLGTEL44 4R.800.500
30 B.203.447 LR 444 8,078,715 5038444
0,771,711 G2 480,056 o200, 1 EE 52,416,081
167,547,702 100,048,049 159,652,467 103,048,049

S 1. v o -1
167,540,376 wogoghoge 150652467 103,048,049
9255208 ThgGo203e  g40.2B6692 750602030

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Divectors on 17 October 2019 and were signed on its

behalf by:

[onut Calin Morvar

General E'Ia%zr

Sabina Moldovan
Finmneial Monager

The explanatory soles o the Anancial sialenenls from page 7 1o page B4 are anpolegral parl of these fnancial stabements =<
]
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Consolidated and Separate Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended on 31 December

Nute

Operating activities
Profit hefore fox
Adjustments for non-manetary elements

E ]
Depreciation expense of premises and equipment and intangible assets 24
Netimpairment charges for Auanee lease receimbles 11

1

Met impairment expenses for ather assaly
Mt expense from valuation pdjstments 1
Nt release of provisions for repossossed inventory 0
Interest ncome from banks
Interest fxpenss

Dividend income L
Tnconse tax

Other adjustments for non-cash items

Operating profit before the change in operating assets and
Habilithes

{Increase) in net finance lease meceivables

{Increase )/ Decrease in other assels

{Imerease)f Decrease in inventory

Incrvase/{ Decrease) of trade payvables and other labilites
Inberest expense pakl

Income tax paid

Niet cash flow from/{used in} operating activities

Investing activities

Apquisitions of premises, equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of premizes and equipment and intangible assets
Cash arising from the merger

Interest received from banks

Dividends received 9
Net cash flow from investing activities

34

Financing activities

Mat receipts of loans and other borrowings

Dividends posd

Net cash Mow from linancing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the heginning of the period ry
Net bircrease bn crsh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 7

The explanatory notes to the financiol stotements from page 7 to page &4 are an integral part of these finoncinl statemenis
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2017
ROa8 adjusted
A1.5934.083 23,116,035
Hy3,049 Baq.7ay
25,627,013 24,200,406
21,002 1,266,500
arLgas =
[4:545.050) {z,780,757)
{191, 733) {48260}
18,574,107 470,044
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3856583 2, 83z 7oh
i 184 267 511 s
78,865,793 B3, 562,300
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Consolidated and Separate Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended on 32 December

Operating activities
Profit hefore o
Adjustments for non-monetary elements

Deprecintion expense of premises and equipment and ntangible assets

Met impairment charges for finance lease receivabios
Met impairment expenses for other assets

Met expense from valnation adjustments

Met release of provisions for repossassed inventory
Intetest incarme from banks

[nterest expense

Dividend income

[meomme tax

Other adjustments for nop-maonetary elements
Operating profit before the change in operating asscts and
limbilities

{Increase) in net finance lease receivables
{Ierease)/Decrease In other assets

{Increase)/ Decrease in inventory

Increase/| Decrease) of trade payables ond other liabilities
Interest expense pabld

Ineaane tax padd

Met cash low from{used n) operating activities

Imvesting activitices

Acquisitbons of premises, eguipment amd fntangihle assets

Proceeds from disposal of premises, equipment and intangible assets
Cash arising from the merger

Interest received from banks

Dhivilends peceived

Met cash Mow from investing activities

Finaneing activities
Met receipds of loans and other borrowings
Thividends padel

Mt cash Mow from Mnancing activitles

Cush and cash equivalenis at the beginning of the perlod

Met increase inocash and cash equivalents
Cash and caxh equivalents at the end of the period

The explanstory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page B4 are an integral part of these financial statements
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

1. Reporting entity

BT Leasing Transilvania IFN SA ("Company”, “Parent Companv”) was established in 1995 as a
privately owned joint-stock company and having as main activity financing of purchase of motor
vehicles and equipment under finance leases by legal entities and natural persons from Romania.
BT Leasing Transilvania IFN SA is part of Banca Transilvania Financial Group ("BT Group”), being
a subsidiary of it. Banca Transilvania SA ("BT") is the parent company and the ultimate controlling

party.

The Company also owns the following subsidiaries: BT Intermedieri Agent de Asigurare SRL, BT
Solution Agent de Asigurare SRL, BT Safe Agent de Asigurdri SRL and BT Asiom Agent de Asigurare
SEL (hereinafter defined as the “Suhsidiaries™), The Parent Company and itz Subsidiaries are based
in Romania and are further defined as the “Group”. The consolidated and separate financial
statements as at 31 December 2018 include the Parent Company and its Subsidiaries.

The Group has the following activities; finance lease, which is carried out by BT Leasing Transilvania
IFN 5.A. and insurance intermediation that is carried out by the subsidiaries: BT Intermedieri Agent
de Asigurare, BT Safe Agent de Asigurare, BT Solution Agent de Asigurare and BT Asiom Agent de

Asigurare.

As a result of applying the provisions of the Government Ordinance no. 28/2006, during 2007, the
Company was registered in the Special Register of the National Bank of Romania as a non-banking
financial institution and operates in compliance with the regulations issued by the National Bank of
Romania (*"NBR").

The address of the Group's registered office is 74-76 Constantin Brancusi Street, Cluj-Napoca,
Romania.

As at 31 December 2018 the Group had 116 active employees (31 December zo17: 118 active
employees).

The Group is managed by the Board of Directors consisting of three members, including a chairman:

Positi 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Chairman Hanga Radu Hanga Radu
Member Tiberiu Moisa Tiberiu Moisa
Member Szekelv Daniel Szekely Daniel

Thet explonatory netes to the financial stotemsemts from page 7 1 page B4 are an ntegral part of tese nancial statensents ’



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN §.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

2. Basis of preparation
a) Conformity statement

The consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the Company have been
prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the
European Union (“IFRS") and the National Bank of Romania (*"NBR") Order 6,/2015 “for approving
accounting Regulations in accordance with European directives” and subsequent amendments
(*WBR Order 6/20157), in foree at the annual reporting date of the Group and the Company,
41 December 2018. The consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2018 cannot be modified after their approval by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

h) Basis of measurement
The consolidated and separate financial statements were prepared on historieal cost basis.
¢) Funetional and presentation currency

The items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which that entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The functional currency of the entities within the Group is the Romanian lei, "RON",
The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in ROMN.

d) Use of estimates and significant judgments

The preparation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in accordanee with IFRS
requires management to use estimates and judgments that affect the application of accounting
policies, as well as the reported value of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. The estimates and
judgments associated with them are based on historical data and other factors deemed to be
elogquent in the given circumstances, and the result of these factors forms the basis of the judgments
used in determining the carrving amount of assets and liabilities for which no other valuation
sources are available, Actual results may differ from estimated values, Estimates and judgments are
reviewed periodically.

Revisions of acoounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period in which the estimate is revised and future
periods, if the revision affects both the current period and future periods. The information related
to those estimates used in applying the accounting policies that have a significant effect on the
consolidated and separate financial statements, as well as the estimates that imply a significant
degree of uncertainty, are presented in Motes 4 and 5.

3. Significant accounting methods and policies

Significant accounting methods and policies have been consistently applied by the Company and
the Group entities throughout the financial vears presented in these consolidated and separate
financial statements. In these financial statements, the Group and the Company applied for the first
time the provisions of IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” (isszed on 24 July 2014 and applicable to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januwary 2018). The Group and the Company have not
adopted in advance any other standard, interpretation or modification that has been issued but
which has not yet entered into foree.

The explanatory nates to the financial ssatemsnts from page 7 to pape B4 are an indegesl pars of these financial statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN §5.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significanl accounting methods and policies (continued)

The Group and the Company have not restated the eomparative information for 2017 for the
financial instruments covered by IFRS g. Therefore, the comparative information for 2017 is
reported in accordance with IAS 39 and is not comparable with the information presented for 2018.
The differences resulting from the adoption of IFRS g have been recognized directly in retained
earnings as at 1 January 2018 and are presented in Note 3 u).

The main accounting policies applicable to the comparative period as of 31 December 2017, which
were subsequently amended in accordance with the provisions of IFRS g, are presented in Note 35,

a) Basis for consolidation

The financial information in the consolidated financial statements include the Parent Company
together with its Subsidiaries subject to consolidation.

(i) Subsidiaries

The Group's Subsidiaries are the entities under the Group’s control. The control over an entity is

reflected by the Group's capacity to exercise its power in order to affect any variable returns to which
the Group is exposed as a result of its involvement in the entity.

The factors that the Group must consider when deciding to include an entity in the consolidation
are the following:

z the purpose and activities of the entity;

- the entity’s relevant activities and the way they are determined;

. whether the Group has power to dirct the entity’s relevant activities;

- whether the Group is exposed or entitled to variable returns; and

. whether the Group has the ability to use its power to affect the returns.

If voting rights are relevant, the Group shall be deemed to have control, if it owns, directly or
indirectly, more than half of the voting rights over an entity, except where there is evidence that
another investor could control the relevant activities. Potential voting rights that are considered
substantive are also considered when determining the control over the entity.

The Group also controls an entity even though it does not have the majority voting power, but it has
the practical ahility to direct the relevant activities. This can occur if the size and dispersion of the
shareholdings give the Group the power to direct the activities in which it has invested.

The subsidiaries are included in the consolidation starting from the date when the control is
transferred to the Group. The Group continuously evaluates the control over the entities in which it
has invested, at least at each reporting date, Therefore, any change in the structure that results in a
change of one or more control factors causes a reassessment. These include changes in decision
rights, changes in contractual arrangements, financial and/or capital structure changes, as well as
changes that occurred following a triggered event that was anticipated in the initial documentation,

{ii) Non-controlling interest

The Group presents the non-controlling interest in its consolidated staterment of financial position
within equity, separately from the equity of the Parent Company's owners.

The explanatory notes o the Gnancial stalements frem page 7 to page 84 are an intepral par ol these finnncial staiements 9



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN §.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
a) Basis for consolidation (continued)

{ii}) Non-controlling interest {conlinued)

The non-controlling interest is measured proportionally with the percentage held in the net assets
of the subsidiary. Any change in the percentage of ownership that does not result in losing control
is disclosed as an equity transaction.

{iii) Loss of control

When the Group loses eontrol over a subsidiary, the assets (including any goodwill), liabilities and
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests are derecognised at the date when control was
lost, Any gain or loss resulting from the loss of control is recognized in the statement of profit or
boss,

Al the date when control of a subsidiary is lost, the Group: a) derecognises the assets (including the
attributable goodwill) and the liabilities of the subsidiary; b) derecognises the value of non-
controlling interests from the former subsidiary; ¢) recognizes the consideration received at fair
value; d) recognizes any investment in the former subsidiary at fair value; and e) recognizes any
difference resulting from the actions above as a gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. Any
amounts recognised in previous periods in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss or are transferred directly
to retained earnings, if required by other IFRSs.

{iv) Transactions eliminated from consolidation

Settlements and transactions within the Group, as well as unrealised gains resulting from
transactions within the Group, are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. The
unrealized gains resulling from transactions with a related entity are eliminated in correlation with
the investment in the related entity. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

() Uneconsolidated entities

If the Group holds investments in subsidiaries or related entities which are immaterial in terms of
total assets and off-balance sheet items as compared to the total assets and balance sheet items of
the Group, the Parent Company may choose not to include them in the consolidation basis. The
Parent Company has decided 10 consolidate the subsidiaries starting with the financial vear ended
31 December 2018, the comparative financial statements for the financial vear ended 91 December
2017 for the Group present the position and financial performance of the Parent Company.

(vi) Presentation of the legal merger through absorption in the financial
slatements, enlities under common control

The purchases of subsidisries from entities under common eontrol are aceounted for using
predecessor accounting method, According to this method, in the financial statements assets and
liahilities of the subsidiary transferred under common control are included at the carrying values
from the predecessor entity, no goodwill arises. The predecessor entity is considered the highest
reporting entity in which the IFRS financial information of the subsidiary has been consolidated.

The exphimatory obes b the finencial Satements Trom page 7 to page By ane an iobegral part of these finandal statensents 10



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN §5.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)

a) Basis for consolidation (continued)
(vi) Presentation aof the legal merger through absorption in the financial
slatemenis, entities under common control {continued)

Any difference between the book value of the net assets, including the goodwill of the predecessor
entity, and the consideration for the acquisition is accounted for in the financial statements as an
adjustment in the equity. Predecessor method is applied by the Company / Group prospectively, from
the date on which business combination under common control occurred.

In the absence of the specific requirements of IFRS for legal mergers by absorption, between entities
under common control, the Company chose to present the carrving values of the identifiable assets
acquired and of the assumed debts taken over, in the consolidated and separate financial statements
at the date of the legal merger, after their initial recognition at fair value at the date of obtaining
control using predecessor accounting method.

The consideration transferred within a business combination is measured at the fair value, being
caleulated as the sum of the fair values from the acquisition date of the assets transferred by the
acquirer, of the debts incurred by the acguirer towards the former owners of the acquired entity and
of the equity investments issued by the acquirer, less acquisition costs that are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

b) Foreign currency transactions

The transactions in foreign currency are recorded in RON at the official exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. The exchange rate differences resulting from such transactions denominated in
foreign eurrency are reflected in the statement of profit or loss at the transaction date and using the
exchange rate valid at the respective date.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the date of the consolidated
and separate statement of financial position are translated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate valid at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historicsl cost in foreign currency are translated in the functional currency by using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate
valid at the date when the fair value is determined. Foreign exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss.

Forgign currency translation

The result and financial position of operations denominated In a currency different from the

functional and presentation currency of the Group is translated into this funetional currency as

follows:

. assets and liabilities of the entity, both monetary and non-monetary, were translated at the
closing rate at date of the consolidated and separate statement of financial position;

*  income and expense items of these operations were translated at the average exchange rate of
the period, as an estimate of the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions;

s  all resulting exchange differences have been classified as other elements of comprehensive
income until the dispozal of the investment.

The exchange rates for the major foreign currencies were:

Currency 41 December 2018 31 December 2017 Variation %
Euro (“"EUR") 1: RON 4.6630 1: RON 4.6597 0.009%
US dellar ("USD") 1: RON 4.0736 1: RON 3.8015 4.68%

The explanatory mobes to the financial stetements from page 7 to page g are an inteiral pas of these inondel statements n



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
¢) Interest income and expenses

Interest income from finance lease contracts is recognised within “Interest income” for the duration
of the leasing contract using the net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of
return.

Interest income and expenses related to financial instruments are recognized in the result of the
vear at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating
the interest income or interest expense over a relevant period. The effective interest rate is the exact
rate which adjusts the estimated future cash flows payable or receivable throughout the expected life
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, with the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial lability.

Once a financial asset or a group of financial assets has recorded an impairment loss, the interest
income is subsequently recognized, using the interest rate to adjust future cash flows in order to
measure the impairment loss applied to the net book value of the asset.

Lease commitment fees are amortized together with the related direct costs and are recognized as
an adjustment of the effective interest rate of the lease. Fee and commission income directly
attributable to the financial asset or liability upon origination (both income and expense) is included
in the measurement of the effective interest rate,

d} Fee and commission ineome

Fee and commission income include the revenues related to the services provided to third parties as
part of the activity carried out by the Company as well as the commissions from insurance
intermediation charged by the Subsidiaries. The Subsidiaries act as agents in the intermediation
contracts according to IFRS 15, the commission income being recorded monthly as a product
between the percentage corresponding to each type of insurance and the amounts paid (instalments
from the insurance policies concluded). The Subsidiaries analvse the recoverability of the
commisgion income at initial recognition.

Commissions expenses include expenses related to services provided by third parties, in particular:
commissions [or the payment of commercial operations and other expenses or revenues related to
them.

The recognition of commission income or expenses depends on their cconomic nature.
&) Net gain/(loss) from foreign currency translation

The net gain/loss from foreign currency translation is the difference between the gain and loss as a
result of currency translation.

f) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized in the result of the year when the right to receive such income is
established and it Is probable that the dividends will be collected. Dividends are reflected as a
eomponent of other operating income. Dividends are treated as a distribution of profit for the period
in which they are declared and approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders,

Thae ﬁfl:lhl,ﬂ;_l‘l,ﬂ"_l.' nodes T the finoncial statemsents from page 710 page 84 are an integral part of these financial stalements 12



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
) Dividend income {continued)

For the Group's Subsidiaries, the only profit available for distribution is the profit for the vear
recorded in the statutory aceounts, which differs from the profit disclosed in these consolidated and
separate financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS, due to the differences between the
applicable Romanian Accounting Standards and IFRS.

£) Revenue and expense from transactions with assets previously leased to customers

Revenues from sale of assets recovered from leasing contracts are recognised when the Group or the
Company has transferred to the buver the risks and rewarnds related to the ownership of the asset,
The cost of the assets is discharged on the date of the recognition of the related income, the discharge
being included in “Cost of inventory, assets released in lease agreements or derecognised”.

h} Net impairment charges of financial assets

Finanee lease contracts receivables are presented in the statement of financial position net of
impairment charges. Impairment charges are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or

loss.

Impairment charges of financial assets are reviewed and updated monthly, More details are
incleded in this note, point k) and 1),

i) Taxes

The income tax for the vear includes the current and deferred tax. The income tax is recognized in
the result for the year or in the shareholders’ equity, if the tax is related to shareholders’ equity
items.

The current income tax is the tax pavable on the profit of the period, determined based on the
percentages applicable at the date of the consolidated and individual statement of the financial
position and of all the adjustments related to the previous periods. Adjustments which influence the
fiscal base of the current tax are: non-deductible expenses, non-taxable income, similar
expense/income items and other tax deductions.

Deferred tax is determined based on the balance sheet liability method for the temporary differences
between the tax base for the caleulation of the tax on assets and liabilities and their accounting value
used for reporting under the consolidated financial statements, Deferred tax is not recognized for the
following temporary differences: initial recognition of goodwill, initial recognition of assets and
liabilities resulting from transactions which are not business combinations and do not affect the
accounting or tax profit and differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, provided that
they are not reversed in the near future and the moment of reversal are being controlled by the Parent

company.
The temporary differences may arise in a business combination, so that an entity may recognize any
resulting deferred tax assets or labilities as identifiable assets and labilities at the acquisition date.
The temporary differences arise when the tax bases of the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities
assumed are not affected by the business combination.

The explonutocy ouiles 8 thwe fnamcial stobenments frnn paee 7 1o papie By are an inbegral pard of these inancal] siatements 13



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate finanecial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
i) Taxes {continued)

According to the local tax regulations, the fiscal loss of the company that ceases to exist further to a
legal merger through absorption can be acquired and recovered by the absorbing entity. The annual
fiscal loss starting 2009, established through the tax statement shall be recovered from the taxahle
income of the next 7 consecutive years.

In order to carry forward nnused tax losses, the deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is likelv
to obtain taxable profit in the future after offsetting the tax loss from the previous vears and the
recoverable tax on profit. The deferred tax asset is diminished to the extent to which the related tax
benefit is unlikely to be achieved.

The tax rate used to caleulate the eurrent and deferred tax position as at 31 December 2018 Is 16%
{31 December 2017: 16%).

) Cash and eash equivalents

For the preparation of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on
hand, current accounts and short-term bank deposits. The bank accounts in foreign currencies are
presented in RON, the conversion being made at the exchange rate valid at the date of the financial
statements, Cash and cash equivalents are presented under “Cash on hand” and “Placement with
banks", being recorded at amortized cost in the consolidated and separate statement of financial
position,

k) Finance lease receivables

The main activity of the Parent Company is to provide finaneing of vehicles and equipment, having
the role of lessor in the finance lease contracts, throngh which substantially all the risks and rewards
related to the asset leased are transferred to the lessee, Assets granted under finance lease contracts
are presented as finance lease receivables and are recorded at the present value of future payments,
finance lease receivables being recognized when the assets financed by the contract have been
delivered to the lessee, Therefore, finance lease receivables are initially recognized at the start of the
contract (when the lease term begins as a result of the delivery of the asset) using an initial discount
rate,

The difference between the gross receivable and the present value represents the unattributed
financial income. This income is recognised over the lease term using the net investment method,
which reflects a constant rate of return. The incremental costs directly attributable to the negotiation
and arrangement of the lease are included in the initial measurement of the inance lease and
diminish the value of the Income recognized during the lease period.

Expected credit losses ("ECLT) are recognised using the simplified method, determining a lifetime
ECL. ECL are determined in the same way as for other assets measured at amortised cost, to disclose
ECL, a separate impairment aceount is used that diminishes the net book value of the receivables at
the present value of the expected cash flows updated with the interest rates implied in the finance
lease, Future estimated cash flows reflect the cash flows that may result from recovering and selling
the assets that are subject of the finance lease contract.

Additional details regarding the impairment policy of the finance lease contracts in accordance
with IFRS g are included in this note, point 1).
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Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (contfinued)

k) Finanece lease receivables (continued)

Classification of lease contracts

A lease is a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership over the
asset, regardless of whether the property title is transferred or not. A lease is considered an operating
lease if it is not a finance lease,

Whether a lease is a finance lease or an operating lease depends on the substance of the transaction

rather than the form of the contract. Examples of situations that individually or in combination
would normally lead to a lease being classified as a finance lease are:

- the lease transfers ownership of the underlving asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term;

the lessee has the option to purchase the underlying a=set at a price that is expected to be
sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable for it to be
reasonably certain, at the inception date, that the option will be exercised:;

- the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the underlying asset even if the title
of the asset is not transferred;

at the inception date of the lease contract, the present value of the minimum lease pavments
amounts to at least substantially all the fair value of the underlying asset; and

- the underlying asset is of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can use it without major
changes.

Indicators of situstions that individually or in combination could also lead to a lease being classified

as a finance lease are:

- if the lessee can cancel the lease, the lessor's losses associated with the cancellation are borne
by the lessee;

- gains or losses from the fluctuation in the residual fair value accrue to the lesses;

- the lessee could continue the lease for a secondary period at a rent that is substantially lower
than the market rent.

If it is clear from other features that the lease does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlving asset, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

Lease classification is made at the inception date of the finance lease contract, which in the case of
the Company is the date on which the finance lease contract is signed.

If the lessee and the lessor agree, at any time, to modify the clauses of the lease without renewing
the contraet, thus determining another classification, if the new provisions existed at the beginning
of the lease, the revised contract is considered a new contract during its entire lifetime.

However, changes in estimates (for example, changes in estimates of the economie life or of the
residual value of the underlying asset), or changes in circumstances (for example, default by the
lessee), do not give rise to a new classification of a lease for accounting purposes.
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continmued)
1} Financial assets and liabilities

The adoption of IFRS g resulted in changing the accounting policies of the Group and of the
Company regarding the recognilion, classification and measurement of financial assets and
liabilities and impairment of financial assets,

The explanatary nobes 1o the financial stabements from page 7 to pige B4 ane an iobegna] part of these finandal stalements

Key terms regarding measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an arm's length transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, on the principal market, or in the absence thereof, on the most advantageous market
to which the Group has access to at that date. The fair value of a Hability reflects the effect
of the noncompliance with the obligations {non-performance risk).

The best evidence of the fair value of a inancial instrument at initial recognition is normally
the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group
determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and
the fair value is neither evidenced by a quoted price on an active market for an identical
asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets, then the financial instrument is initially valued at fair value, adjusted to postpone
the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price.

Suhsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over
the life of the instrument, but not later than when the valuation is fully supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
Issue or disposal of a Ananedal instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have
been incurred if the transactions had not taken place. Transaction costs include fees and
commissions paid to agents (including employees acting as selling agents), advisers,
brokers and dealers, levies paid to regulatory agencies and stock exchanges, transfer taxes
and other duties. Transaction eosts do not include debt premiums or discounts, finaneing
costs or internal administrative or custody costs,

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is recognised at
initial recognition less any principal repayments, plus or minus the acerued interest using
the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected eredit losses,

The effective interest method is a method of alloealing interest income or interes! expense
over the relevant period to obtain a constant periodic interest rate (effective interest rate)
related to the canving amount. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash payvments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
or [inancial liability to the gross carryving amount of a financial assel.

For financial assets that are purchased or originated credit-impaired (*POCI™) at initial
recoghition, the effective interest rate is adjusted for eredit risk, and is calculated based on
expected cash flows at initial recognition instead of contract payments, the contractual cash
flows being reduced with the expected credit losses computed over the lifetime of the asset.
The resulting effective interest rate is defined as eredit-adjusted effective interest rate,
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Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (eontinued)
1} Financial assets and liabilities fcontinued)

The explonotery nofes fo the financiol stotements from poge 7 to page B4 ore on integral pan of these finoncial statenwents

Initial recognition

Financial instruments are recognised when, and only when, the entity becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Normal purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised at the trade date, the date on which the Group or the Company undertakes
to buy or sell the asset,

At initial recognition, the Group and the Company recognise a financial asset or financial
liahility at its fair value, plus or minus transactions costs that are incremental and directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or liability, such as fees and

COmMIMISsions.

After initial recognition, an impairment provision for expected credit losses for financial
assets measured at amortised cost is recognised, which results in an accounting loss
recognised in profit or loss,

Subsequent measurement

Starting with 1 January 2018, the Group and the Company applied IFRS 9 and consequently
classified their financial assets at amortised cost. Subseguent measurement and evaluation
of financial instruments depends on: (i) the business model for managing the asset portfolio
and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. According to the
business model applied by the Group and the Company, the financial assets are in line with
the “hold to collect”™ business model, sales of financial assets being rare or with insignificant
values, both individually and cumulatively.

Impairment

IFRS g is based on expected losses and implies an early recognition of those expected losses
from the future for assets measured at amortized cost as well as receivables from finance
lease contracts. The Group and the Company determine and recognize ECL at least on each

reporting date.

The ECL measurement reflects:

- an unbizsed and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes;

- the time value of money; and

- reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.

Reasonable and supportable information are those that are available for inancal reporting
purpaoses are considered to be reasonably available without undue cost or effort, Ineluding
information about past events, current conditions and forecasts regarding future economic
conditions. Information that is available for financial reporting purposes is considered to
be available without undue cost or effort. The Group and the Company alse consider
observable market information about the credit risk of a particular financial instrument or
similar financial instruments.
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Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)

13 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Reasonable and supportable information must be based on relevant conerete data and
sound judgement.

ECL measurement for financial assets measured al amorlized cost and for finance lease
receivables is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant scenarios
regarding future economic conditions and behaviour of financial assets (for example, the
probability of default of customers and loss recorded as a result of default).

The Group and the Company envisage incorporating forward looking information into the
process of analysis and evaluation, including macroeconomic factors. The information used
includes an objective analvsis of the relevant factors and their impact on cash quality and
cash deficits. Among the relevant factors are those intrinsie to the Group and the Company
and ite activity or those resulting from external conditions.

Forward looking information, including economic forecasts and related eredit risk factors
used for ECL estimates must be consistent with inpuls to other relevant estimates in
financial statements, budgets, strategic and capital plans, and other information used for
management and reporting,

Simplified approach

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the Group and the Company use the simplified
approach in accordance with IFRS 9, grouping portfolios into risk classes (class T - also
called stage 2 and risk class 11 - also called stage 3), each class having a specific caleulation
method of the adjustment.

The simplified approach was chosen because the Group and the Company do not have a
sophisticated credit risk management system.

The simplified approach eliminates the need to caleulate the 12-month ECL ("12-month
ECL") and the need to assess whether a significant increase in credit risk related to financial
assets and receivables from finance lease contracts is identified.

The ECL is determined after Initial recognition and throughout the contractual period so
as to reflect the ECL for the entire lifetime ("Lifetime ECL™).

The caleulation of the impairment adjustment is made at individual level for the significant
exposures (exposure greater than RON 2,200,000} from risk classes [ and IT and at
collective level for the other exposures from the loans.

»  Risk class I includes all Anancial assets held and which are not impaired. For these,
the Lifetime ECL impairment adjustment is computed.

- Risk class IT includes the financial assets which are already impaired, and for these
the Lifetime ECL is determined, a PD of 100% being used.

In accordance with the provisions of IFRS g for the definition of the default, the Group and
the Company established the following signals/indicators/events following which a
financial asset will be classified in risk class 11:

- exposures that record overdue payments towards the Group or Company higher than
90 days from the reporting date. Overdue means any amount representing principal,
interest or commission related to finance lease contracts that has not been paid until
the due date;
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Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
1) Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

- exposures for which the Group or the Company has initiated the either foreclosure
procedure or amiable execution from the initiative of the lesses;

- exposures for which the debtor is unlikely to fully fulfil his payment obligations
without executing the collateral, regardless of the existence of outstanding amounts
or the number of days past due. The following are considered as indications of
unlikeliness to pay:

a)  reaching 9o days past due which triggers stopping the caleulation of interest;
and

b}  significant financial difficalty of the issuer or of the debtor, assessed as a result
of credit analyses carried out on various occasions (requests for new
facilities/extensions/replacement  operations/changes of credit conditions,
puarantee/monitoring actions, etc.) as part of the credit rating (high risk
rating).

- the opening of insolveney/bankruptey proceedings against the debtor.

It may not be possible to identify a single distinet event - in contrast, the combined effect

of several events may have led to the impairment of financial assets as a result of credit risk.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets

Upon initial recognition of the financial asset, the Group and the Company determine
whether it meets the criteria for classification as asset purchased or issued impaired as a
result of credit risk, This category includes:

- leasing contracts, which at the time of purchase, are considered to be impaired;
new leasing contracts, granted to clients already in risk class IT; and

- leasing contracts for which a significant restructuring operation was initiated /
operated, due to clients in financial difficulty (classified as “non-performing
restructuring”), and the restructuring aims a:

change of the debtor of the lease (novation);
change of the currency in which the leasing contract is reimbursed
(denomination); and

- contract splits (a single contract is divided in multiple contracts, more contracts
are consolidated into a single contract or other operations of a similar nature),
the initial operation leads to derecognition, and the newly recognised contraet
will be classified as POCL

The renegotiation or otherwise changes to the contractual cash flows leads to the
derecognition of the existing finanecial assets. If the contractual conditions are altered
significantly based on the commercial renegotiations, both at the elient's request and at the
initiative of the Group or the Company, the derecognition of the existing financial asset and
subsequent recognition of the modified financial asset takes place, the modified financial
assel being considered a “new” financial asset.

In accordance with the provisions of IFRS g, an asset is considered to be a “financial asset
impaired due to credit risk” when one or more events have had a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the respective financial asset.

A financial asset initially recognised as POCI will be maintained in this category until the
derecognition date.
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
1) Financial assets and liabilities {eontinued)

FECL measurement

In calculating expected credit losses, at the reporting date, the effective interest rate
established at the initial recognition or an approximation thereofis used. If a financial asset
has a variable interest rate, the expected credit losses must be determined using the current
effective interest rate. For financial assets purchased or originated credit-impaired as a
result of credit risk, expected credit losses must be determined using the eredit-adjusted
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Establishing the need for specific credit risk adjustments is done in two slages:

»  determining the required expected credit losses computed on an individual basis as
the difference between the present value of the exposure and the present value of
future cash flows (determined by estimated recoveries from the use of collateral,
seenarios that consider the probahility of repayment of the debt from finance lease
contracts from the sale of collaterals as well as the estimated recovery period); and

. determining the reguired expected eredit losses caleulated at the collective level,
which is calculated for the clients that are not analysed individually being the result
of the discounting of the product between the probability of default (*PD"), the
exposure at default ("EAD") and the rate of loss given defanlt ("LGD™).

PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation {(as per the
definitions of defanlt and impairment) over the remaining lifetime of the obligation
(“Lifetime PD™).

EAD is based on the amounts the Group or the Company expects to be owed at the time of
default over the remaining lifetime of the obligation ("Lifetime EADT),

The Loss Given Default represents the Group’s or the Company’s expected amount of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty and availability of collateral
or other credit support.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each future month and for
each individual exposure. The ECL for each future month is then discounted back to the
reporting date and sumned up.
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Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
1) Finanecial assets and liabilities (continued)

The explanotosy Bt o the financial statements from page 7 1o page B4 are an integral part of these Bnencial stiemenls

Collateral policy

The Group and the Company hold collaterals against finance lease receivables in the form
of mortgages over land and buildings and intrinsic collaterals on vehicles, machinery and
equipments and other goods that represent the underlying asset of the finance lease
contracts, The fair value estimates are based on the value of the collaterals established at
the date of granting the finance lease contract and are updated periodically,

Derecognition

Derecognition policy of impaired assels related to finance lease receivables

The Group derecognises assets from its accounting records when it considers that the asset
is no longer recoverable. This conelusion is reached after evaluating the significant changes
that took place in the client's financial position, changes that determined the impossibility
of payment of the obligation or the insufficiency of the amounts from the use of the
guarantees to cover the entire exposure. Derecognition of finance lease receivables are
performed only after all legal recovery possibilities have been exhausted.

Finanece lease receivables are derecognised by the Group in the following eases:

= on the date when the invoiced amount of the debt is received from the client
according to the payment schedule of the lease contract;

. at the recovery of the assets in case of terminated contracts: and
. when all legal recovery possihilities are exhausted.

The Group and the Company hold collaterals for finance lease receivables in the form of
legal property titles over the assets acquired through finance lease, other guarantees and
collateral on future cash flows.

Derecogmition of other financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the rights to receive cash flows from that
financial asset expire, or when the Company has transferred the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows related to that asset in a transaction in which it has significantly
transferred all risks and the benefits of property rights. Any right in the transferred financial
assels that is held or ereated by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or lability.

The Company enters into a transaction by which it transfers recognized assets to the halance
sheet but retains either all the risks and benefits associated with the transferred assets, or
part of them, If all or most of the risks and rewards are withheld, then the assets transferred
are not derecognised from the statement of finaneial position. Assets transfers withholding
all or most significant risks and benefits are, for example, securities loans or sale
transactions with a redemption clause (repurchase agreements),
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Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

1. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
1) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

The rights and obligations retained following the transfer are separately recognized as
assels and liahilities, as the case may be. In transfers in which the control over the asset is
retained, the Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent that it remains
involved, the degree of involvement being determined by the degree to which it is exposed
to the change in value of the transferred asset.

Financial labilities

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation is paid, cancelled
or expires. If an existing financial debt is replaced by another debt to the same ereditor,
under different conditions, or if the terms of an existing obligation are significantly
muodified, such exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original debt
together with the recognition of a new obligation, and the difference between the
corresponding net values is recognized in the result of the year.

m) Invenlories

Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business, in this category being
included recovered assets related to finance leases cancelled in advance due to non-compliance of

the contractual elauses by the users.

Assets in the form of inventory should not be reflected in the statement of financial position at a
greater value than the value that can be obtained by using or selling them. For this purpose, the
value of inventories is decreased until the net realisable value, by reflecting an adjustment for
impairment.

At the date of initial recognition by the Company, the inventories are valued at fair value. Fair value
is equal to the amount for which the asset could be voluntarily exchanged betwesn parties who are
aware of it, in a transaction with the objectively determined price. The fair of the assets is generally
cletermined by market data, through an evaluation carried out by qualified professionals.

According to the provisions of the leasing agreements, the Company reserves the right to recover
the objects given in lease to its clients to the extent that there are outstanding debts. The carryving
amount of inventories is reviewed at least once a year to determine whether there are impairment
losses. The impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of inventory is greater than the net
recoverable value. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss under “Net
income with other adjustments for impairment and other provisions™.

For inventories held for sale, the sale price is disclosed under “Revenue from sale of assets previously
leased to customers” and the cost of the respective asset is derecognised and is presented under
“Cost of inventory, assets released in lease agreements or derecognised”.
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Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
n} Equity investments

Equity investments are represented by the shares held by the Company in the consolidated
subsidiaries as well as in other companies over which the Company exercises no significant influence
or control. At the date of initial recognition, investments in equity are recognized at the value of the
consideration paid, subsequently measured at cost less adjustments for impairment. The analysis
regarding the need for additional adjustments for impairment is performed annually by the
Company.,

Equity investments representing investments in shares of consolidated entities are eliminated from
the eonsolidated financial statements of the Group.

In separate financial statements the investments in subsidiaries are accounted at cost less
impairment.
o) Premises and equipments
(i) Recognition and measurement
Premises and equipments are recorded at acquisition cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Measurement at initial recognition
The cost of a non-current asset consists of:

a)  its purchase price, ineluding customs duties and non-refundable purchase fees, after
deducting commercial discounts and rebates;

b)  any eosts that can be directly attributed to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to function in the mode designated by the management.

(ii) Subsegquent costs

The Group and the Company recognize in the carrving amount of premises and equipments
the cost of replacing the assets when this cost is incurred or if it is probable that the economic
benefits ineluded in that asset shall be transferred to the Group and the Company and the cost
of this asset can be measured reliably. All other costs are recognized as an expense as a result
of the vear at the time of their execution,

{tii}) DPepreciation

The depreciation is calculated using the linear method over the estimated useful life for each
item in the category of premises and equipments.

The estimated useful life by categories are as follows:

Computers 4 yEars
Equipment 4 -5 Years
Furniture 3 =15 VeArs
Vehicles 4 - § Vears
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Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

4. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
p) Intangible assets

The intangible assets at initial recognition are recorded at cost. After the initial recognition, the
intangible assets are recorded at the acquisition value minus any subsequent accumulated
amortization or aceumulated subsequent impairment,

The costs of intangible assets in course of execution are capitalized if these meet the conditions for
re-::ngm’z.mg an intangible asset, namely: these generate future economic benefits, are reliably
evaluated, improve future performance and are distinetly identified in the economic activity.
Maintenance and technical support expenses are reflected in the expenses as they are incurred.
Intangible assets in course of execution are recognized in intangible assets at the time of receipt and
commissioning,

The amortization is calculated using the linear method over the estimated useful life for each item
in this category. The useful life estimated for intangible assets is between 1 to 5 years.

q) Other assets and impairment

Other assets include profit tax to be recovered, value added tax to be recovered and other non-
contractual elements.

An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of the asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash generating unit is the smallest identifiable group that
senerates cash and is independent of other assets and other groups,

An impairment loss for other assets is measured at each reporting date to see if there are any
indicators that the loss has been diminished or is no longer existent, In case of other assets the
impairment generated by the loss of value can be reversed if there is 2 modification in the estimates
that were used to determine the net realisable value, An impairment loss is reversed only when the
book value of the asset does not exceed the book value that would have been determined, net from
amortisation and impairment, in case no loss from impairment was recognised.

r) Loans from banks and finanecial institutions

Loans from banks and other financial institutions are initially recognized at fair value as receivables
from these instruments (fair value of consideration received) net of ransaction costs, Loans from
other banks and other financial institutions are subsequently recorded at amortized cost. The Group
and the Company classify these instruments as financial liabilities.

%) Provisions for liabilities and charges

Provisions are recognized in the consolidated and separate statement of financial position when an
obligation arises for the Group and the Company in connection with a past event and it is likely that
in the future there will be an cutflow of economic resources to extinguish this obligation and a
reasonable estimate can be made to measure the value of the obligation. If both conditions are not
met simultaneously, no provision is recognised. To determine the provision, future cash flows are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate, reflecting current market conditions and risks specific to
the respective debt.

The Company estimates potential risks arisen from litigations in which it is involved. In case there
bs a probability of loss of more than 50% and the value of the economic outflows can be reliably
estimated a provision for lability and charges will be recognised. The provision will remain in the
Company’s accounts until the litigation is finalised either by winning or by paying the amount of the
claim.
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Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
t) Employee benefits

(1) Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits include wages, indemnities and social security contributions.
Short-term employvee benefits are recognized as expense as the services are rendered.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The Company and its Subsidiaries make payments on behalf of their emplovees to the social
insurance system, the health insurance fund and the state budget, during the normal activity.

All the Emplu}'u:a of the Company and its Subsidiaries are members and are also legally
obliged to make specific contributions (included in the social security contributions) to the
Romanian public pension plan (a State defined contribution plan). All relevant contributions
are recognized as the result of year, when they are made.

(iii) Other benefits

The Company and its Subsidiaries are enrolled in an optional pension scheme Pillar IT1, within
an established limit, for the employees eligible at the payment date, in accordance with the
applicable Romanian legal provisions. The Company and its Subsidiaries, pursuant to the
collective employment agreement, must pay the equivalent of three gross monthly salaries to
the emplovees, upon retirement. The debt related to this benefit scheme is caleulated on an
actuarial basis, considering the salary estimated at the retirement date and the number of
activity years of each individual employee. The Company and its Subsidiaries do not have any
obligation to provide subsequent services to the former or current employees,

u) Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations
The following new standards and interpretations are in foree as of 1 January 2018:
IFRS g - Financial Instruments (effective date: annual periods as of 1 January zo18)

« Financial assets are required to be classified into three meassurement categories: those to he
measured subsequently at amortized cost, those to be measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCT") and those to be measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss [ JFVPL").

» Classification for debt instruments is driven by the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and whether the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of prineipal and
interest (SPPI). If a debt instrument is held to collect, it may be carried at amortized cost if it also
meets the SPPI requirement. Debt instruments that meet the SPPI requirement that are held in a
porttolio where an entity both holds to eollect assets’ cash flows and sells assets may be classified as
FVOCIL. Financial assets that do not contain cash flows that are SPPI must be measured at FVPL (for
example, derivatives). Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from financial assets, but are
included in the assessment of SPPI.

= Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair value. However, management can
make an irrevocable election to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income,
provided the instrument is not held for trading, If the equity instrument is held for trading, changes
in fair value are presented in the income statement.
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Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant aceounting methods and policies (continued)
u) Adoption of new or reviewed standards and interpretations (confinued)

+ Most of the requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
have been carried forward unchanged to IFRS g, The key change is that an entity shall be required to
present the effects of changes in own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss in other comprehensive income,

« IFRS g introduces a new model for the recognition of impairment losses - the expected credit loss
model. There is a “three stage” approach which is based on the change in eredit quality of financial
assets sinee initial recognition. In practice, the new rules mean that entities will have to record an
immediate loss equal to the 12-month ECL on initial recognition of financial assets that are not
credit impaired (or lifetime ECL for trade receivables). Where there has been a significant increase
in credit risk, impairment is measured using lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL. The model
includes operational simplifications for lease and trade receivables.

» Hedge aceounting requirements have been amended to align accounting more closely with risk
management. The standard provides entities with an accounting policy choice between applying the
hedge accounting requirements of IFRS g and continuing to apply IAS 39 to all hedges because the
standard currently does not address accounting for macro hedging,
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

2. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)

u) Adoption of new or reviewed standards and interpretations (continued)

it) Classification and reconciliation of retained earnings al the date of initial
application of IFRS 9

The table below analyses the net tax impact of the transition to IFRS g on the retained earnings of
the Group and Company.

- i RO -
Impaet of adopting IFRS 9
on 1January 2018
Group and Company

Retained earnings in accordance with [AS 30
(31 December 2017) B2, 410,000
ECL recognition in accordance with IFRS g for finance
lease recetvables (7,260,120)
Corresponding deferred tax 1,163,060
Retained earnings in accordance with IFRS o
(1 January 2o018) 40,304,036

IFRS 15 - Revenue from customer contracts (issued on 28 May 2014 and effective for
periods beginning on 1 January 2018).

The new standard introduces the basic principle that revenues must be recognized when goods or
services are transferred to the customer, at the transaction price. Goods or services in bundle that
are distinet must be recognized separately, and any reduction or rebate to the contract price should
generally be allocated to the separate tems. If the amount varies for any reason, the minimum
amounts must be recognized if there is no significant risk of reversal. The costs incurred to obtain
contracts with customers must be capitalized and amortized during the period in which the benefits
of the agreement are consumed. The Group analysed the impact of IFRS 15 and has adopted the
standard for the intermediation income,

Amendments to IFRS 15 “Revenue from customer contracts” (issued on 12 April zo16
and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2o018).

The amendments do not change the underlying prineiples of the Standard but clarify how those
principles should be applied. The amendments clarify how to identify a performance obligation (the
promise to transfer a good or & service to a customer) in a contract; how to determine whether a
company is a principal (the provider of a good or service) or an agent (responsible for arranging for
the good or service to be provided); and how to determine whether the revenue from granting a
licence should be recognised at a point in time or over time, In addition to the clarifieations, the
amendments include two additional reliefs to reduce cost and complexity for & company when il
first applies the new Standard.

Amendments to IFRS 2 “Share-based payment” (issued on 2o June 2016 and effective
for annual periods heginning on or after 1 January 2018).

For the purposes of the amendments, the conditions required to enter into rights, other than market
conditions, will influence the estimation of payment transactions based on cash settlement actions
in the same way as those with settlement on equity instruments.

o8
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
u) Adoption of new or reviewed standards and interpretations {continued)

The amendments also clarify classification of a transaction with a net settlement feature in which
the entity withholds a specified portion of the equity instruments, that would otherwise be issued to
the counterparty upon exercise (or vesting), in return for settling the counterparty’s tax obligation
that is associated with the share-based payment. Such arrangements will be classified as equity-
settled in their entirety. Finally, the amendments also clarify accounting for cash-settled share
based payments that are modified to become equity-settled, as follows (a) the share-based payment
is measured by reference to the modification-date fair value of the equity instruments granted as a
result of the modification; (b) the liability is derecognised upon the modification, (¢) the equity-
settled share-based payment is recognised to the extent that the services have been rendered up to
the modification date, and (d) the difference between the carrving amount of the liahility as at the
maodification date and the amount recognised in equity at the same date is recorded in profit or loss
immediately. These iz not applicable for the Group,

Annual Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards, zo14-2016 —
Cyele - Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 (issued on 8 December 2016 and effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January zo18).

IFRS 1 was amended and some of the short-term exemptions from [FRSs in respect of disclosures
about financial instruments, employee benefits and investment entities were removed, after those
short-term exemptions have served their intended purpose. The amendments to IAS 28 clarify that
an entity has an investment-by-investment choice for measuring investees at fair valoe in
accordance with 1AS 28 by a venture capital organisation, or a mutual fund, unit trust or similar
entities including investment linked insurance funds. Additionally, an entity that is not an
investment entity may have an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity. LAS 28 permits
such an entity to retain the fair value measurements used by that investment entity associate or joint
venture when applying the equity method. The amendments clarify that this choice is also available
on an investment-by-investment basis.

IFRIC 22 (Interpretation 22 of the Committee for the Interpretation of International
Financial Reporting Standards) - “Foreign currency transactions and prepayments”
(issued on 8 December 2016 and in force for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018).

The interpretation addresses how to determine the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part thereof) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from an advanece consideration in a foreign currency. Under TAS 21, the date of the transaction for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income [or part thereof) is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the date of the transaction
for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. IFRIC 22 only applies in circumstances in
which an entity recognises a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from an advance
consideration. IFRIC 22 does not provide application guidance on the definition of monetary and
non-monetary items. An advance payment or receipt of consideration generally gives rise o the
recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability, however, it may also give rise to a
monetary asset or lHability. An entity may need to apply judgment in determining whether an item
is monetary or non-monelary,
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A,

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)
u) Adoption of new or reviewed standards and interpretations (continued)

Transfer of Investment Property - Amendments to IAS 4o (issued on 8 December 2016
and effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January zo18)

The amendments clarify the requirements on transfers to, or from, investment property in respect
of properties under construction. Prior to the amendments, there was no specific guidance on
transfers into, or out of, investment properties under construction in IAS 40. The amendment
clarifies that there was no intention to prohibit transfers of a property under construction or
development, previously classified as inventory, to investment property when there is an evident
change in use, 1AS 40 was amended to reinforee the principle of transfers into, or out of, investment
property in IAS 40 to specify that a transfer into, or out of investment property should only be made
when there has been a change in use of the property; and such a change in use would involve an
assessment of whether the property qualifies as an investment property. Such a change in use should
bz supported by evidence. This amendment is not applicable to the Group.

Apart from the standards and amendments for which the impact on the Group and the Company
was specified above, there were no other standards that had an impact on the Group and the
Company.

v) New standards and interpretations in foree as of 1 January 2019 or later

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
- Amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28 (issued on 11 Seplember zo14 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined by the IASB). These
amendments address an inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28 in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture,
The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction
involves a business, A partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business, even if these assets are held by a subsidiary.

IFRS 16 - Leasing (issued on 13 January 2016 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January zo19).

The new standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases. All leases result in the lessee obtaining the right to use an asset at the start of
the lease and, if lease payments are made over time, also obtaining financing. Accordingly, IFRS 16
eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases as is required by
IAS 17 and, instead, introduces a single lessee accounting model. Lessees will be required to
recognise: (a) assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value; and (b) depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease
liabilities in the income statement. IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in IAS 17, Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently.

The Group expects the implementation of IFRS 16 to generate the recognition of an asset related to
the right to use the leased assets of approximately 2 million RON (operating lease commitments are
disclosed in Note 21).
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)

vl New standards and interpretations in force as of 1 January zo10 or later
(continued)

IFRIC 23 - “Uncertainty over income tax treatments” (issued on 7 June zo17 and
applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 2019).

IAS 12 specifies how to account for current and deferred tax, but not how to reflect the effects of
uncertainty. The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement
requirements in IAS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. An entity should
determine whether to consider each unecertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more
other uncertain tax treatments based on which approach better predicts the resolution of the

uncertainty.

An entity should assume that a taxation authority will examine amounts it has a right to examine
and have full knowledge of all related information when making those examinations. If an entity
concludes it is not probable that the taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of uncertainty will be reflected in determining the related taxable profit or loss, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits or tax rates, by using either the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method the entity expects to better predict the resolution of the
uncertainty,

An entity will reflect the effect of a change in facts and circumstances or of new information that
affects the judgments or estimates required by the interpretation as a change in accounting estimate,
Examples of changes in facts and circumstances or new information that can result in the
reassessment of a judgment or estimate include, but are not limited to, examinations or actions by
a taxation authority, changes in rules established by a taxation authority or the expiry of a taxation
authority’s right to examine or re-examine a tax treatment., The absence of agreement or
disagreement by a taxation authority with a tax treatment, in isolation, is unlikely to constitute a
change in facts and circumstances or new information that affects the judgments and estimates
required by the Interpretation.

Amendments to IFRS 9 (issued on 12 October 2zo17 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

The amendments enable measurement at amortised cost of certain loans and del securities that
can be prepaid at an amount below amortised cost, for example at fair value or at an amount that
includes a reasonable compensation payable to the borrower equal to present value of an effect of
increase in market interest rate over the remaining life of the instrument. In addition, the text added
to the standard®s basis for conclusion reconfirms existing guidance in IFRS g that modifications or
exchanges of certain financial liabilities measured at amortised cost that do not result in the
derecognition will result in a gain or loss in profit or loss. Reporting entities will thus in most cases
not be able to revise effective interest rate for the remaining life of the loan in order to avoid an
impact on profit or loss upon a loan modification.
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN 5.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies {continued)

v) New standards and interpretations in foree as of 1 January 2oig or later
{(conbinued)

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments to IAS 28 (issued
on 12 October 2017 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019). This amendment is not yet endorsed by the European Union.

The amendments clarify that reporting entities should apply IFRS o to long-term loans, preference
shares and similar instruments that form part of a net investment in an equity method investee
before they can reduce such earrying value by a share of loss of the investee that exceeds the amount
of investor’s interest in ordinary shares,

Annual improvements to IFRS for 2o015-2017 cyvele - Amendments to [FRS 3, IFRS 11,
IAS 12 and IAS 23 (issued on 12 December zoi7 and shall apply to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. This amendment is not vet endorsed by the
European Union.

The narrow scope amendments impact four standards, IFRS 3 was clarified that an acquirer should
remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business,
Conversely, IFRS 11 now explicitly explains that the investor should not remeasure its previously
held interest when it obtains joint control of a joint operation, similarly to the existing requirements
when an associate becomes a joint venture and viee versa. The amended IAS 12 explains that an
entity recognises all income tax consequences of dividends where it has recognised the transactions
or events that generated the related distributable ]_J-rt:lﬁl'.:i, g in pr it or loss or in other
comprehensive income. It is now clear that this requirement applies in all circumstances as long as
payments on financial instruments classified as equity are distributions of profits, and not only in
cases when the tax consequences are a result of different tax rates for distributed and undistributed
profits. The revised [AS 23 now includes explicit guidance that the borrowings obtained specifically
for funding a specified asset are excluded from the pool of general borrowings costs eligible for
eapitalisation only until the speeific asset is substantially complete.

Plan Amendment, Caortailment or Settlement - Amendments to IAS 19 (issued on 7
February 2018 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January zo1g9).
This amendment is not yet endorsed by the European Union.

The amendments specify how to determine pension expenses when changes to a defined benefit
pensgion plan oceur. When a change to a plan—an amendment, curtailment or settflement—takes
place, IAS 19 requires remeasuring net defined henefit iahility or asset. The amendments require
to use the updated assumptions from this remeasurement to determine current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the reporting period after the change to the plan. Before the
amendments, IAS 19 did not specify how to determine these expenses for the period after the change
to the plan. By requiring the vuse of updated assumptions, the amendments are expected to provide
usetul information to users of financial statements.
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN 8.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

3. Significant accounting methods and policies (continued)

v) New standards and interpretations in foree as of 1 January zoig or later
{continued)

Amendments to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (issued on 29
March 2018 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January zozo).
This amendment is not yet endorsed by the European Union.

The revised Conceptual Framework includes a new chapter on measurement; guidance on reporting
financial performance; improved definitions and guidance - in particular the definition of a liability;
and clarifications in important areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
un¢ertainty in financial reporting,

“Definition of a business™ — Amendments to IFRS 3 (issued on 22 October 2018 and
effective for acquisitions from the beginning of annual reporting period that starts on
or after 1 January 2020). This amendment is not yet endorsed by the European Union.

The amendments revise definition of a business, A business must have inputs and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs, The new guidance
provides a framework to evaluate when an input and a substantive process are present, including
for early stage companies that have not generated outputs. An organised workforce should be
present as a condition for classification as a business if are no outputs. The definition of the term
“putputs” is narrowed to focus on goods and services provided to customers, generating investment
income and other income, and it excludes returns in the form of lower costs and other economic
benefits. It is also no longer necessary to assess whether market participants can replace missing
elements or integrating the acquired activities and assets. An entity can apply a “concentration test”.
The assets acquired would not represent a business if substantially all of the fair value of gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single asset (or a group of similar assets)

“Definition of materiality” - Amendments to LAS 1 and IAS 8 (issued on 31 October
2018 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). This rule
is not yet endorsed by the European Union.

The amendments clarify the definition of material and how it should be applicd by including in the
definition guidance that until now has featured elsewhere in IFRS. In addition, the explanations
accompanying the definition have been improved. Finally, the amendments ensure that the
definition of material is consistent across all IFRS Standards. Information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide finanelal information about a specific reporting entity,

Except as described above, the Group does not expect the new standards and interpretations to
materially affect the Group's financial statements.

w) Segment reporting

The only segment of activity defined at the Group level is the one related to the leasing activity, this
being the basic activity of the Group. The internal reporting prepared for the management is
structured around it.
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

4. Financial risk management policies
a) Introduction

The Group and the Company are exposed to the following risks, as a result of using the financial
instruments:

«  Credit risk;

» Liguidity risk;

o  Market risk:

This note discloses information regarding the exposure of the Group and the Company to each risk
mentioned above, the objectives of the Group and of the Company, the policies and processes for
risk assessment and management. The most important financial risks to which the Group and the

Company are exposed are credit risk, lguidity risk and market risk. Marker risk includes currency
risk and interest rate risk.

The credit risk associated with the leasing activity is managed through the Group's risk management
processes, The Group's largest exposure to credit risk is related to finance lease receivables, In this
case, the exposure is the book value of the assets in the balance sheet. In order to minimize the risk,
the Group has certain procedures designed to evaluate the customers before approving the leasing
agreements, to set exposure limits, to monitor their ability to repay the principal and the resulting
interest, during the duration of the lease,

The Board of Directors has delegated the responsibility for managing the credit risk to the Risk
Committee, The Department of financial analysis and valuation of assets also operates within the
Group and has duties regarding:

' formulating credit policies by eovering the requirements for collateral, leasing assessment,
risk elassification and reporting, legal and documentation procedures, and compliance with
statutory and regulatory requirements;

. establishing the authorization strueture for the approval of leasing agreements. Authorisation
Hmits are allocated on the levels of Credit Committee. Larger leasing agreements reguire the
approval of the Risk Committee or the Board of Directors, as the case may be;

. limiting concentration of the exposure based on third parties and industries;

‘ developing and maintaining the risk classification system to classify exposures according to
the risk levels of potential financial losses and to allow management to tocus on the risks that
accompany them. The risk classification system is used to determine the risk monitoring
activities and the relationship with the customers. The scoring system is subject to periodic
reviews;

' reviewing, checking the compliance of the unit with the established exposure limits, ineluding
those tor specific industries and produets; and

: providing information, guidance and experts for the units, to promote the best practice in the
Group regarding credit risk management.
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial

statements

4. Financial risk management policies (continued)

b) Credit risk

The table below presents the risk concentrations by economie sectors for balance sheet exposures,

related to finance lease receivables:

Transport

Trade

Manufacturing
Construction

Services

Agriculture and Forestry
Mining

Real-estate

Financial institutions
Other

Authorized person
Telecommunications
Matural person {retail clients)
Chemical

Energy

Fisheries

Governmental bodies

Gross Cxposure

Impairment allowances related to
finance lease receivables
Receivables from finanece lease

agreements

31 December 2018

- fit ROHY -

31 December 2017

250,975,500 205,585,244
196,833,373 136,213,526
151,006,201 142,270,705
100, 725 Oy 86,067,098
73,286,365 52,024,430
f5.889 470 50,061,035
34,252.849 18,869,103

31,604,150 13,466,780
23,400,449 14,044,448
20,082,982 1 G560, 005
17,788 320 15,500,522

9.599.677 6,770,638
7,021,036 3744, 252
2,336,319 2_654,004
1,100,B40 2 050,476
o77.907 575084
23l 151 207,602
1,0006,153,173 6o, 817,122
(B06,893.1249) (55.508,283)
919,260,049 714,248,859
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

4. Financial risk management policies (continued)
b) Credit risk (continued)

Finance lease receivables are considered impaired according to impaired assets identification and
measurement policies issued at Group level. As of 31 December 2017, as per group policies, each
risk grade can have an associated rating, from the lowest risk (1) to highest risk where foreclosure
procedure has been initiated (6).

Receivables in the first risk category are those which do not have any days past due. Those in 2nd
degree risk category includes receivables with days past due between 1 to 15 days. In the grd
category the days past due are between 16 to 30 days. In the 4th category the days past due are
between 31 to 60 days. In the sth category the days past due are between 61 to go days. In the 6th
category the dayvs past due are over g1 days or receivables for which foreclosure procedures have
been initiated to recover the debt.

The exposures to credil risk for finance lease receivables at consolidated and
separate level as at 31 December 2017 are presented below:

=in KCIN- A1 December 2007

Asseszed individually for impairment

Degree 1 LA, (e
Depres 2 421,500
Degree 5 149,178 676
Degres 4 1,833.874
Degree 5 -
Degree & 1,081,242
Grass value 59:354:392
Individual adjustments for Dnpairment (34698 804}
Net book value 24.655. 588
Nof friperived and eolleeively ossessed for impairment

Degres1 587,642,077
Dhepres 2 2557516
Degree 3 83,514,606
Depres 4 H,163,864
Degree 5 2,976,784
Gross value 0hEg.8 F
Collective adjustments for impairment {1,5306,055]1
Nt hook value 6B, 547.817
Impaired @ird collechively assessed for ingpairmend

Degree & 28 68, B
Gross value 25,608,870
Collective adjiestinents for impairment {is b, 445)
Mt book valoe 6,045,434
Total net booked value 714,248, 830

The explanatory notes to the financinl statements from page 7 to page &4 are an integral part of these financial 2
statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

4. Financial risk management policies (continued)
b) Credit risk (continued)
Collateral policy

An analysis of the fair value of collaterals related to financial assets as at 31 December 2018 is
presented below:

=in RON- Uinder - eollateralised Over - collateralised
Gross exposure

Vehicles

Girogs pxplEure 225,008 405 qab.aba.za0
Coflaterals BT, 110,105 Fd, 00,150
Equipment

CAres expOsre 145520173 122678 776
Callaterals 114,095,497 02,00, i
Buildings

roas exposune 5,008 406 Boz68 oy
Colloternks 2,170,473 LT R55.04T
Total Gross exposure 374,937,074 61216, 0040
Total collaterals Jo4 212,075 1,040, 264, 71

An analysis of the fair value of the collaterals related to financial assets as of 31 December 2017 is
presented below:

-3r KO- a7

Collaterals related to impaired receivables and individually or eollectively adjusted

for impairment
Vihicles 28670
Oither guarsivess A9:.955,211
Collaterals for non-impaired receivables and collectively assessed for impairment
Viehicles g, 288 g4
Others 251, 71
Tatal 924, 275953

The explanatory notes to the financtal staternents from page 7 to page 84 are an integral part of these financial 43
stntemierls



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN §.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

4- Financial risk management policies (eontinued)

¢) Ligquidity risk

The liquidity rizk is the current or future risk of a negative impact on profits and capital, generated
by the inability of the Group and the Company to meet their obligations connected with liabilities
at the maturity date.

Liquidity risk has two main components: either difficulties in obtaining the funds at the related due
dates, necessary for refinancing current assets, or the inability to convert an asset into liquidity at
a value close to its fair value within a reasonahble period of time.

The purpose of liquidity risk management is to obtain the expected returns on assets under the
conditions of an adequate liquidity management, conseiously assumed and adapted to the internal
and international market and development conditions of the Group and the Company, and not least
in the context of the current legislative framework.

The Group and the Company are constantly concerned with the management of this type of risk.

The Group and the Company have access to diversified financing sources. Funds are attracted
through a range of instruments such as loans from banks and financial institutions as well as share
capital. Access to varlous sources of financing improves the flexibility of fundraising, limits
dependence on a single type of Mnancial and a type of partner and leads to a general decrease in the
eosts involved in attracting funds.

The liquidity risk iz generated by the policy of managing the attracted resources. This includes the
risk that the Group and the Company may encounter difficulties arising from the inability to collect
an asset at a value close to its fair value within a reasonable period, The Group tries to maintain a
balance between the continuity and the flexibility of attracting funds by contracting debts with
different maturities. The Group permanently controls the liguidity risk by identifying and
monitoring the attracted financing and diversifying the financing base.

The explanatory notes to the finonecial statements from page 7 to page B4 are an integral part of these financind 44
stoterments
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements
4. Financial risk management policies (continued)

d) Market risk

Market risk represents the risk that the earnings of the Group or the value of financial instruments
held may be affected by market value changes corresponding to the interest rate, the foreign
exchange rate or other financial ratios. The objective of market risk management is to monitor and
maintain the exposures to these risks within acceptable risk parameters, while optimizing the
return on investments for the risks undertaken,

d1) Interest rate risk

The main risk to which non-traded portfolios are exposed is the loss suffered as a result of changes
in future cash flows or the market value of financial instruments as a result of interest rates
fluctuation. The interest rate risk is mainly managed by monitoring the interest rate gap and through
a system of approved limits for the price recaleulation intervals. The risk management monitors the
ohservance of these limits.

The Company manages the interest rate risk mainly by aligning the interest rates from the leasing
agreements with those provided in the loan refinancing agreements. Generally, the fixed interest
rate liabilities are used to finance fixed interest rate leasing agreements and the variable interest rate
liahilities are used to finance variable interest rate leasing agreements.

The sensitivity analysis shown below illustrates the impact on the statement of profit or loss and
ather comprehensive income in case of possible interest rate fluctuations,

The explanatory nodes to the firancial statements from page 7 to page 84 are an integral part of these finaneinl 49
slatensents
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A,

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

4. Financial risk management policies (continued)

d) Market risk {(continued)

d1) Interest rate risk (continued)

The table below shows the detailed interest margin position for the Company’s interest-hearing
financial assets and labilities as at 31 December 2018;

=in RON - Upilos months 3 - 12 months 1L— S years Tastal
Financial nssiets

Cash on hand 4478 e - 4,478
Macements with hanks B.o13,860 . . f.019.860
Finance lease receivables Gin,z04.808 5,727,501 7.527.650 010,260,040
Total Mnancial assets 18,333 416 L 727,501 73276530 27,278 657

Financial liabilities
Loans from hanks and other

financial institutions afln, fya. a0 345,248,631 13h, 260, 104 L5108
Total financial liabilitics zhg, 642,308 345,248,631 136,260,104 771,151,088
Net balance sheet position 628, 581.1 1 128,032 156,137 61

The table below shows the detailed interest margin position for the Company's interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017

- in RON - Uptogmonths 3 -i1zmonths 1= 5 years Total
Financial assets

Cash on hand 2,183 = - 2,180
Placements with banks 25400, 500 RS9 0.50%
Finance lease receivables 707,734,720 1,106,884 5320,235 714,248,839
Total financial assets total 733664 412 1,006, B8 181,551

Finaneial lishilites

Loans from banks and other

financial institutions 076,450,568 ohg 441 806 Bi370.805  Gmm, 260,397
Total financial lisbilities 276,450,586 264,441,826 Big70,Bzs ﬁ.m
Net halance sheet position 457,213 826 (263.244.942)  (76,050.500) 117,918,204

The explanatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page 84 are an integral part of these financial 5l
statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate finaneial
statements

4. Finanecial risk management policies (continued)

d) Market risk (continued)

d2) Chirrency risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to the exchange rate risk through the open positions
generated by the foreign exchange transactions. There is also an on-balance sheet risk related to
the possibility of net monetary assets or liabilities in foreign currency variation, as a result of the
exchange rate fluctustions.

The management of the exchange rate risk of the Group and the Company is done through real-
time monitoring, as well as by leasing agreements financing in the currency of the loan agreement.

The monetary assets and liahilities expressed in RON and in foreign currency of the Group as at
91 December 2018 are presented below:

Other
-in RON - EUR __ RON currencies _ Total
Financial assets
Cash on hand 5370 - 5,376
Placemoents with banks 190,359 B.ab68 By 4,048 g, 165, 508
Finance lease receivables G15.773, 724 303,450,325 - Q19,260,044
Other financial assets 2,520,318 7,054,568 0,583,886
Total financial assets 618,493,395 319,515,166 4,048 938,012,609
Financial liabilities
Leans from banks and other
fnancial institutions 477.840,35% 247,310,673 F71,151,03H
Other financial liabilities 4085514 4,670,862 - 9,356,370
Total financial liabilities 482,525 B3 207081541 780,507,414
Net balance sheet position ___135.067,522 21,533,025 4,048  157.505.1905

The monetary assets and Habilities expressed in RON and in foreign currency of the Group as at
51 December 2017 are presented below:

- i RON -

Financial assets

Cash on hand
Placemenis with banks
Finance leaze receivables
Other financial assets
Total finameial assets

Financial liahilities

Loans from banks and other
fimsircial instititions

Other financial labdlites
Total financial linhilities

Net balance sheet position

Oither

EUR RON  currvencies Total
2,183 T 2183
1534491 25,772,890 4,128 25,430,509
350,742,808 363,505,041 e 714,948 830
2198, 396 3,195,578 x _5393.974
__353.004,785 392,476,502 4,128 745.575.505
350,756,063 271,507,172 b2, 263,237
1hh54,102 12,461,115 - 20,115,437
367 410,167 =83.068 507 - 651,378,674
{14.315.382) 108,508,085 4,128 94,106,831

The explanatory notes to the financial stalements feom page 7 to page 84 are &n integrol part of these financiol 52

statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S_A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial

statements

4. Financial risk management policies (continued)

d) Market risk (continued)
dz} Currency risk

The monetary assets and liabilities expressed in RON and in foreign currency of the Company as
at 31 December 2018 are presented below:

- i RN -

Financial assets

Cash on hand
Plarements with banks
Finanece lease receivables
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial linbilities

Loans from banks and other financial
institutions

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

MNet halance sheel position

Other

_ EUR _ RON currencies __ Total
* 4,748 - 4.748
100,355 7. 816,450 4,048 B, 013,860
615,773:724 303486325 - 914,260,049
_ amagmd 2,082,464 5 4,611,772
018,493,395 313,392,986 4:048 931,800,429
477.840,359 203,310,670 . 771,151,098
4r‘5351534 'E":WE:]'EE = |.|-|4'E|';1|ﬁ‘\-1ﬂ
482,325 B73 300,088,805 - 782614678
135,967,522 13,304,181 4.048 149,275,751

The monetary assets and liabilities expressed in RON and in foreign eurrency of the Company as
at 31 December 2017 are presented below:

= arm RO -

Financial assets

Cash on hand
Placements with banks
Finance leaze recetvables
Other finaneial aszets

Total financial assets

Financial Habilities

Loans from banks and other financial
institutions

Other financial hiahilities

Total financial liabilities

Net balance sheet position

Other

EUR RON currencies Total
2 1H% - 2,184
L 25772, B 4,128 25,990,500
350,742,808 363,505,941 2 714,248,839
2,108,306 3,105 578 - 533974
353,094,785 392,476,592 4:128 745575505
A50,756,065 271,507,172 baa,263,237
16,654,102 12,461,335 = 95437
10,1 28 - 651,378,674
(14,315.382) 108,508,085 4,128 94,196,850

The explanatory netes to the finsnclal statements from page 7 to page B4 are an integral part of these financial a3

sratements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

4. Financial risk management policies (continued)

d) Market risk (continued)

dz) Currency risk (continued)

The table below presents the profit or loss sensitivity in the event of potential changes of the
exchange rates applicable at the end of the reporting period in relation to the functional currency,
considering that all the other variables remain constant:

- fn RO - Group Company

| 2018 2007 zo18 2017 ]
EUTR increase bv up to 5%
(zo17: increass by up to 5%) 6,768,376 (715.769) 6,798,376 [715,76g)
EUR decrease by up to 5%
(zo17: decrease by up 5%) (6.708,376) 715,760 (6,798 976) 715,760
Total - = - -

&) Taxation risk

The Group and the Company are committed to ensure a sustainable tax risk management by
building and maintaining an efficient, effective and transparent tax function within the
organization. The Group and the Company strictly comply with and apply the legal regulation in
foree applicable to all categories of taxes and duties.

The Romanian tax legislation includes detailed and complex rules which have encountered many
changes in the recent years. The interpretation and practical implementation of the tax legislation
may vary and there is a risk that certain transactions could, for example, be construed differenthy
by the tax authorities as compared to the Group's and the Company’s treatment.

The National Agency for Fiscal Administration comprises specialized organizational structures
that can conduet the fiscal controls of all the companies operating within Romanian borders and
such controls may cover both fiscal compliance topics and other legal and regulatory matters, It
iz likely that the Group and the Company continue to be subject to regular tax andits, as new laws
and regulations are issued in this feld.

f) Business environment risk

The finance lease and consumer loans companies, members of the Association of Financial
Companies of Romania (“ALB" - Asociatiei Societatilor Financiare din Romania), took full
advantage of the economic growth and 2018 has been for these companies the best year after the
erisis, with financing increases excesding 10%. A total new valume of approximately 2.5 hillion
euros was expected according to the estimated data of the financial leasing market in Romania
for 31 December 2018, in 2018 the leasing financing increased by 14%.

Although it has been growing for five vears without stopping and with a rate of over 10%, the local
finanee lease market level is at half the level of 2008,

Beyond growth, what is noteworthy is the quality of the financed goods, During the crisis there
were more consumer financing, in recent vears, the financing is mainly directed to the productive
area. 0% of the financing is going to the SMEs, and the financing is mainly for the productive
aresn. Even if as share of inancing (about 60%) is focused on car finaneing, there is an increase in
the area of commercial vehicles, this is a good sign, a sign that the productive economy is being
financed.

The explanatory noles to the financlal statements from page 7 te page B4 are an integral part of these financial 4
stntEments



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

5. Accounting estimates and significant judgements

The Group and the Company make estimates and assumptions that affect the value of assets and
liabilities reported within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are considered to be reasonable under the given circumstances,

Expected credit losses for finance lease receivables

The estimated expected credit losses for the finance lease receivables involves significant
judgements in order to assess the methodology, models and historical data used in calculations.
Details regarding the methodology used o determine the expected credit losses are included in
Note 3 I). The following items are considered to have a major impact in the caleulations of
expected credit losses: definition of defaull, probahility of default (“PD"), exposure at default
(“EAD") and loss given default ("LGD7). The Group and the Company reviews and validates
periodically the models and the data used in the ealeulations of ECL in order to reduce the
differences between the estimated expected credit losses and the actual losses incurred from
eredit risk, the caleulations for expected eredit losses being performed on a monthly basis.

The Group and the Company made the choice to use the simplified approach to determine
expected eredit losses, based on Lifetime PD for each contract except for class 2 clients (stage 3)
where the PD is considered to be 100%,

A 5% increase in the risk parameters used to calculate the expected credit losses as of
31 December 2018 would increase the expected credit losses with RON 4,478,000, while a 5%
decrease in the risk parameters used would cause a decrease of expected credit losses with
ROM 4,107,000,

The explanatory nates to the financial statements from page 7 to page 84 are an integral part of these financlal 32
staterments



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial

statements
6. Net interest income
= in BN - Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Interest income
Interest income from leasing
AZTEEENTA T, 471,466 55.081,185 76,471,466 55.981,135
Interest income from current
accounts and deposits 191,733 48,260 175,714 48260
Total interest income 76,663,199 56020305  76,647.180  56,020.305
Interest expense
Interest expense on loans from banks
and financial institutions {(19,066,626) (7570521 (19,066,626) (10,757,152}
Total interest expense (19,066,626) [(10,757,152) (19,066,626) (10,757,152}
Met interest income z 0 2RE.D
7. Net fee and commission income/{expense)
- I RON - Group 'l:um_El_}'
2018 2017 zoud 2017
Fee and commission income
Commissions collected according to
the IHSEHE Agresments 10,70 155551 1,007,707 155,551
Insurance brokerage commissions B.qab,330 o - = =
Total fee and commission
income 9434123 1553:501 1,007,703 155,551
Fee and eommission expenses
Fees paid for banking operations __{=9a,524) {e70,712) {272,793) (270,712}
Total fee and commission
CXPENSCS __l(292,524) {270,712} (z7z.,703) (270,712}
Net fee and commission
income/{expense) 9,141,599 (115.161) 735000 (115,161)
8. Net gain/(loss) from foreign currency translation
Group Company
- i RON - zon 8 2017 2018 2017
Net gain/ (lozs) from eschonge rte
differences — balance revaluation (6,418} Th7,122 (54.408] b7, 122
Net gain from exchange rate
revaluation of transactions 3455445 2,460,824 485445 2,469,824
Net gain/{loss) from foreign
currency translation 3,391,027 H230,940 3991027 3,236,940

The net income from exchange rate differences derives from the monthly revaluation of assets
and liabilities in foreign currency, carried out at the month end, published by the National Bank
of Romania.

The explanatory nofes to the financlal statercents from page 7 to pape 84 are an integral part of these finoncial 50
statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

9. Other operating income

Group Campany

- in RO - 2018 2017 2018 2017
Ineome from the sale of tapgible non-current assets B6,284 166,114 A6 cHa 16143,114
[meome from pentals - B33 720 - B33,7aa
Dividend income (1) 10, R 830,206 $:134.418 850,326
Other income (i) . 4,275,710 4.143.084 272,201 4,143,984
Total other operating Income 4.372.818 TATT 046 B.402.003 7,977,046
(i}  The dividend income was collected by the Company from the seven subsidiaries of the

Group:

. BT Intermedier Agent de Asigurare S.R.L., in amount of RON 2,391,530
{2017: RON 1,749,678);

. BT Safe Agent de Asigurare S.R.L., in amount of RON 588,157 (z017: RON 421,632);

. BT Solution Agent de Asigurare 5.R.L., in amount of RON 420,606
(zo17: RON 324,677);

. BT Asiom Agent de Asigurare S.E.L., in amount of RON 725,211 (2017: RON
330,785);

. Medicare Technies 5.R.L., in amount of RON 10,814 (2017: RON 12,144);

. BT Asset Management, in amount of RON 8 (2017: RON 8); and

. BT Direct IFN S.A., in amount of RON 2 (2o17: RON 2),

Dividend income for the Group is recorded from Medicare Technics S.R.L., BT Asset
Management SAI 5.A. and BT Direct IFN S.A. (these are entities where the Group has
ownership below 20% of share capital),

{ii} Other income include the amounts obtained from reinvoicing of various registration
services, insurance costs for the goods that are the underlying object of the lease
agreements: RON 2,647,063 (2007: RON 2,585.482), compensation received from
insurance companies; RON 444,902 (2017: RON 363,440), damages claims received from
the terminated leasing agreements; RON 101,128 (2017: RON 382,468) and other revenues
collected: RON 1,082,617 (z017: RON 812,594).

10. Net expense from inventory

- in KON - Group . Company

2018 2017 2018 2017
Eevempe from sale of assets previonzly
leased to clistomers 1625, 146 By, 70 1,605,146 B&g, 70
Cost of inventory (3,684,053)  (3.456,498)  (3.684,053)  (3.456.498)
Uilisation of provisions for repossessead
inventory 1,545.650 2,780,757 1,545,650 2 780,757
Total ___(513,257) 188,049 (513,257} 188,040

The explanatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page &4 are an integral part of these financial a7
statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial

statements

11. Net impairment charges of financial assets

- i RON -

Cost of impairment for finance lease
receivables

Income from release of impairment for

finance lease recervobles

Income from early terminated contracts

and repossessed assets

Net expense from valuation adjustments

Invpairment expense adjustments for
ather assets
Income from reversal/cancellations of

impairment adjustments of other assets
Nel expense with adjustments for

impairment of finaneinl assets

12. Net income/expense relating to provisions

- RON -

Provisions for litigations expenses
Impairment reversal for equily
investments

Net income with other
adjustments for impairment and
other provisions

13. Personnel expenses
- e KON -

Wages and benefits

Contribution for social seenrity and
insTAnCe

Pension benefits expense

Cither tixes, duties and similar prayrenis
Bonuses for employers and provisions for
1lr|t:.||-u-.r.| h-:riid.a_'rﬂ

Income/{ Expenses) with provisions for
pensdiens amd similar chligaticns

Tival personnel expenses

 Group Company
28 2017 28 2017
(65.154.019)  {30,900,436) (65,154 ,019) (30.900,4:356)
41,527,006 15,704), 0630 41,527,000 15,709,030
6,774,576 12,798,163 6,774,570 12,798,105
{571.995) {571,995} -
(75.084) (1,997.732) (75,984} (1,397,732)
54,073 131,226 54,073 131,226
_{17,446.343) (12.668.749) (17.4406.,343) (12,668,740)
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
i 78,730) (614,695) (78,736) (B14.605)
o 7518 = 7518 =
(71,218) (614.695) {71,218) (614,695)
Group Company
Ll 2017 co1f 2017
(23, g22.655] {10.051,402] (1306053407} [10n,051.302)
(534.727] (727,157} (5000 [727,457)
{1,.494.057) - (a5, 057)
[7d.242) (57,7640 (7B 24a) {57.761)
{1,174,208) (391524} (1,142, B2} {301,524)
76T (26,680 70,677 (126 680])
(15,641,155) (12848490} (14 Bi7.702) (12,848 490)

The explanatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page 84 are an integral part of thess financial 58

statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial

statements
14. Other operating expenses

= i RON -

Tax and duties expenses

Rental expenses

Ltilitles, repairs and other maintenance
SETVICEs eXpenses

Advertizing, protecol and spongorship

ERpEnses

Postage, telecommunications and texting

BXPENSES

Materials and consumables expenses
Electricity and heating expenses
Caollaborator expenses

Transportation, travel and secondment

EXpenses

Loszes from the assignment and disposal of
premises and cquipments and intangible

asseks

Other operating expenses

Total other operating expenses
15. Income tax (expense)/credit

a) Components of the (expense)/credit with income tax

The (expense)/credit for corporate income tax as presented in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income includes the following elements:

= if1 KO =

Current tax

Deferred tax
(Expense)/credit for income tax

b} Reconciliation of the tax (expense)/eredit

- i B -

Gross profit
Statutory tax quota (2018: 16%;
Zod7 I6%)

Fiscal gffect on the profit tax firom
the elerments:
MNon-toeable tnroome

Nem=deductible experses
Tax deduckons
Irbcorme relabed tlemns
Effect of the fiseal loss taken over
by merger
Prafil tax expense
Tox deductions

Group Company

2o B 2017 2018 2017
(442,362) (56,852) (442.332) [56,852)
(BHg,558) (771.346) (R2z.687) {771,346)
(o58,614) {645.114) (B5H,614) (645.114)
(1,222 ag7) (gza,m0] (1,221,945) (o22,010)
(448,083) (387.325) (36z,009) (387,325)
(761,656) (727,816) (759,941} (727,816)
(328.166) (2g9,650) (295.630) (29a.650)
{667) (22,475) (667} (22.475)
{165.782) (105,347} (165,5379) (105,347}
(33.a72) (93.500) (23.272) {93,500)

_ {3,191 755) (2.444 903) (2,973 456) (2.444.902)
(8,052,012) (6,476,427) (7.735.932) (6,476.427)
Gruup Company -

[Snid 2017 2018 2017

- (3.221,761) (3,221,761}

051 803 - L0118, 315 -
951,802  (3.221,761) 1,011,315 (3.221,761)

Group Company

2018 2017 2B 2017
51,934,085 236035 28,780,154 23,116,035
S T009. 450 G008 566 4,604,825 .?uﬁ?'ﬂ-:.'.'l'ﬁﬁ;
(2,341,579) {2,o16,318) (000,354} (2.006,318)
2 Hz5 003 2,166, B 2 854,55 2,164,802
{399,364} (324,021) (go7.913] (324,021}
(1,104,891} - 5 L
{507,414} - (serg14) S
(951,8B02) 3,525,089  (1,011,315) $.525,089
- {303,328) - {303 328)
{u51,802) 3,221,701 (1,011,315) 3,221,761

The explanatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 o page B4 are an Integral part of these finnneial 59

statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statement

15. Income tax (expense)/credit (continued)
The fiscal impact is generated by the following items:

- The non-taxable income mainly inchedes the income from dividends obtained from
Romanian legal persons and the revenues from the reversal of the non-deduetible
provisions;

- The non-deductible expenses include amounts such as expenses with provisions, expenses
with accounting depreciation and other non-deduetible operaling expenses, as provided
b law;

- Income related items represent the difference between the profit tax (with 16% rate) and
the total income tax of 1% applied for micro-entities (subsidiaries) as per Romanian tax
law;

The tax deductions are related to the deductions obtained from the tax depreciation and
the legal reserve,

¢}  Deferred tox
The Group and the Company have booked deferred tax for the following items:

- in RON - Group Company

o018 2017 2018 2017
Finance lease receivables 16,149,560 Bogz 811 10,145,560 B.2R2 811
Provisions for liahilities and charges o B78 o84 . 2,725,084 -
Total 22,028,553 B.2Bz2.811 21,872,653 B82828n
Deferred tax assets (16%) (i3] 1,325 [ i
16. Cash on hand
- i RN - Group Company

2018 2047 zo18 ‘.'Iﬂ]?'
Cash on hand Spi7h 289 4,748 2,183
Total 5:376 2,183 4,748 2185
17. Placements with banks
-1in RON - _ Group Company

2018 2017 z018 2017
Current accounts 2,383,497 4,868,753 1,234,059 4,868,753
Sight depogits with banks 6,778,760 2,058,058 6,778, 700 2,055,058
Term deposits with banks . 19,001,850 - 19,001,850
Collateral deposits with banks BE7 68T BHE7 67
Agcrued interest 454 1161 354 10601
Total 9,163,208 25030500 B013.860  25970.500

The current accounts and sight/term deposits are freely available to the Group and are not
pledged. The demand deposits with banks are overnight deposits placed at banks. Term deposits
with banks are deposits placed at banks for an initial period of more than one business day. In
2018, the Group set-up demand and term deposits in EURO and RON, the purpose of their set-
up being to capitalize on the excess lguidity.

The explanatory netes to the financial statements from page 7 to page B4 are an integral part of these financial to
statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.
Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statement

17. Placements with banks (continued)

Credit guality analysis of the amounts placed with banks as of 21 December 2018 and
31 December 2017 based on rating agencies is presented as follows:

31 December 2018 Group

Current Collateral Dremand
- i RON - aecounts deposits deposits Total
Adequate 566,054 - 4,310,947 4,&77.908
Under monitoring 5 K16, ma [ 2468167 4,285 507
Total 2,383,497 6R7 779,114 4,163,208
31 December 2018 o Company

Current Collateral Dremamd
« i RON - accounts deposits deposits Total
Adequate 566,312 - 4,310,947 4,877,250
Under manitoring BET. 74T a7 2,408,167 3136600
Tutal 1,234,059 hf7 0,775,114 8,013,860
31 December 2017 : Group and Company

Current Collateral Term Drermamd
- ir RO - accounts deposits deposits deposits Teovtal
Adequate 320,651 - 2,058, 062 o 378,719
Unaber maitoring = 4548, 102 687 151, 0, O T - 23,560,706
Total 3,868 7573 (it 1, Y, T 2038 062 25,930,509

{"} Acerued interest has been included in the amounts presented above,

Credit quality assessment of the placement with banks was based on the ratings issued by
Standard & Poor's, Moody's and Fitch, where available. For banks without a eredit rating issued
by Standard & Poor's, Moody's or Fitch the country rating issued by Standard & Poor's was used.

The Group and the Company have defined the following rating categories for the placements with

banks based on rating agencies ratings:

- AAA, AA+, AA, AA- are included in the “Excellent” category;

2 A+, A, A- are included in the "Good” category;

- BEE+, BEB and BBB- are included in the "Adequate” category;

- the remains credit institutions with lower credit ratings are included in the “under
manitoring” category.

The following table presents the reconciliation between eash and eash equivalents at the end
of the reporting periods with the statement of cash flows:

- in RON - Grovup Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Cash aon hand 576 o183 4,748 o183
Current accounts 2289 407 4,868,753 1,234,050 4,868,755
Demand deposits 6,778,760 2,058,058 &, 778 7ho 2,058 058
Term deposits = 1y 001,850 - 19,001,850
Total ensh and cash equivalents 9,167,633 25,030,844 B017,567 35930844

The explanatory rotes to the financial statements from page 7 to page B4 are an integral part of these fnancial 0
statements
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN §.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

19. Other financial assets

- RON - Group Company
2018 2017 208 2017
Advance payments to suppliers 1,798,072 1,788,291 Q032 Hha5 1, 7HR. 201
Sundry debtors (i) 6,808,080  2,603.560 1601350 2693560
Other past-due amounts under litigation (ii) 5,450,436 4.585.550 5,450,436 3,585,550

Impairment adjustments for past-due amounts  (4,562,71) (26734270  (4.5062711)  (2,673.427)

Total 9,583,886 5303.074 461,772 5,393,974

(i} Sundry debtors represent amounts paid for the mandatory civil insuranee policies for the
vehicles that are the object matter of the finance lease agreements and which are to be
recovered from users RON o (zo17: RON 1,040,377), amounts to be received as insurance
compensation RON 373,040 (2017: RON 613,278) and other amounts owed by sundry
debtors RON 1,318,312 (2017: RON 1,039,005).

(ii) The past-due amounts under litigation represent advanees paid for the purchase of goods,
that represent the underlying asset of the lease agreements, for which the supplier has not
delivered the goods RON 3,455,478 (2017 RON 3,455.478) and past-due amounts from
various services provided RON 1,994,958 (2017 RON 130,072).

Amounts presented in the categories “Advance pavments to suppliers™ and “Sundry debtors™ are
current amounts, not impaired both for the Group and the Company at the end of 2017 and 2018.

The impairment adjustments for past-due amounts under litigations can be further analysed as
frallenws:

-in RON - Group N Company

2018 2017 2018 2017
Balance at the beginning of the
year (2,673.427) (1, 406,921) (2,673.427) (1,406,921}

Net (expense )/ [ncome from reversal of
impairment sdjustments for other

assets (Note 1) (21,911) {1,260, 506) {21,911} {1,266, 506)
Impairment adjustments for sundry

debtors taken over through merger ~ _ (1.867.373) - (1,867.373) .
Balance at the end of the year (4,562,711)  (2,673.427)  (4,562,711)  (2,673.427)

During 2018, following the merger process, the Company recorded purchased or originated credit-
impaired sundry debtors having a gross exposure of RON 1,867,973 (fair value RON o).

The explanatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page 84 are an integral part of these financial 03
statenents



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN 5.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

20. Inventory

- in RON - Group Conpany
=018 2017 zo18 2017
Inventory held at third-parties 664,600 1,404,747 Bihg, a0 1,404,747
Inventory kept in headguarters 30,464,405 13733450 30,464,405 13,733,450
Adjustments for impairments (23.329.652) (7.507.364) (23.329.652) (7.507.364)
Total Ta7O0. 443 7,630,833 700,443 7.630,833

The inventories consist mainly of goods recovered from the terminated leasing agreements that have
not yet been placed under new lease agreements or sold: RON 30,334,111 (2017: RON 14,171,578),
goods gained as a result of foreclosure procedures: RON 232,197 (2017: RON 335,860), goods to be
placed in new lease agreements RON 543,676 (2017: RON 630,319) and equipment for locating the
goads that are the underlving asset of lease agreements to be sold to users RON 19,111 (2o17: RON
440).

The impairment adjustments for inventories were established as the difference between the

recoverable amount at the time when the inventory has been recognised in the balance sheet and their
recoverable amount at the current reporting date, and can be further analysed, as follows:

- tn RON - Group Company

z2oul 2017 2018 2017
Balance at the beginning of the vear P57, Hhy 1,288 191 7507904 10,2880
Expenses wilh imventory impairment adjustieents {1,545650) (2,7B0,757) (u545.650] [2780.757)
ITmpairment adiustmaents for inventory taken over by
Merger 17367038 = 17367938 -
Balance at the end of the year 23,329,652 7.507.364 23320652  7,507.364

21. Equity investments

Asat 21 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Company had direct investments in subsidiaries,
amounting to RON 60,530 (2017: RON 69,530).

- in RO -

Entity name T L % 2017 g

BT Intermedierd Agent de Asigorare 5.0 L 5590 QipOQR02 25,530 LOnBOz
BT Safe Agent de Asigurane 5.8 o210 4o 08604 4010 R
BT Solution Agent de Asigurane S H.L. 15,990 O9.GRO00 14,5990 QOO50040
BT Asiom Agent de Asigurare 5.8. 1., 10,060 . GROGD0 14, 5o TR TR T
BT Asset Management SALS.A, q 0000040 a LR
BT Divect IFN 5.4 if OO0 16 O D
Medicare Technies 84 (i) - - - CLE1330
Total 5,539 69,559

{1} The investment in the share capital of Medicare Technics SRL in amount of RON 7,518 has be
sold during 2018, The Company derecognised the investment and the corresponding impairment
amount of RON 7,518 when the sale transaction was finalised.

The explanatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page 84 are an integral part of these Anancial b4
statements
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

24. hher assets

- in RO - Group Company
201l 2017 pIiEE ] S017
Inventary and similar elements 18,503 a4, 7H2 18 g0y 4,702
Prepaid expenses 15456 13,050 14,178 13,050
Other assets 152,710 Bd.401 2R2.TIO 54,491
Value added tax to be received - 2,034,980 . 2,434,080
Vilue added tax non-deductible 46,238 5 TS 36,305 28,377
Turtal 223,204 3,062,680 Fz2= 0uh 300 GE0
25. Loans from banks and other financial institutions

- in RON - _ Group Company

2018 2017 ao18 20i7
Loans from banks and other financial
institutions T7,88E,164 i3, 020,954 T7L.BE8 164 £33, 004, 054
Interest payable and deferred fees (7ar.a26) {76,717 (73726} (766,717)
Toial 771151038 6o 96,097 TTLigL088 Gas 263,237

Interest rates corresponding to the term loans received by the Company as at 31 December 2018
range from 1.17% to 2.75% for loans in EUR and between 4.23% and 4.30% for loans in RON
{31 December 2017: 1.17% and 2.50% for loans in EUR and between 1.20% and 3.34% for loans in
RON). Interest rates corresponding to the term loans received by the Company as at 31 December
2018 from related parties range from 1.75% to 2.75% for loans in EUR and 4.3% for loans in RON
(31 December 2o017: 1.75% for loans in EUR and 2.69% for loans in RON).

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Company complied with all the contractual terms
(financial limitations) imposed in the financing agreements, including the financial covenants
corresponding to the lan agreements, The maximum repayment term of the loans received is 2029,

26. Provisions for liabilities and charges

The provisions for liabilities and charges are presented as follows;

= im RON - Group Company

20iH 2ONT 2018 2017
Provisions for other employes benefits 3:0354,804 tBo6 B2 o BT oR4 1, 8oh 832
Provisiona for litigations F23.7494 014,595 T3 724 14605
Total 3.758.608 2421527 3,602,708 2.4:1507

As of 31 December 2018 the Group and the Company have recorded a provizion for pensions and
other similar benefits in amount of RON 56,012 (2017: RON 126,689).

As of 31 December 2018 the Company has recorded a provision of RON 2,486,000 for employee
bonuses and RON 336,972 for untaken holidays (2017 RON 1,400,000 for emplovee bonuses and
RON 280,143 for untaken holiday). As of 31 December 2018 the Group has recorded a provision of
RON 2,617,500 for employee bonuses and RON 361,472 for untaken holidays (2zo017: RON 1,400,000
for employee bonuses and RON 2Bo,143 for untaken holiday).

The explonatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page &4 are an integral part of these financkal b7
staterments



BT Leasing Transilvania TFN §.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

26. Provisions for liabilities and charges

Provisions for litigations

The Company analyses periodically the potential risks raised from litigations in which it is involved.
In case there is a loss probability above 50% and the value of the potential losses can be estimated
reliably a provision is created. The value of the provision remains in the Company's accounts until
the litigation is finalised either by winning or by paying the amounts claimed.

The litigation provision booked as of 51 December 2018 is in amount of RON 723,724 (2017: RON
614,605).

The movement in the provision for liabilities and charges is presented below:

- in RON = Group Company
- 2018 20y 2018 2017

Balanee as at 1 January 2.421,527 L,eHE, G &.421,527 1,288, 61g
Expenses of provisions for other rlaks 3099, 447 2 A1 160 ¥ 07547 FA4L6, 160
Income from reversal of provisions for litigations and

nther risks 11,880, 650] (1,2833,252) (1,886, 650) {1,283,.253)
Pravisions for other risks taken through merger 30,33 - _30,20% -
Balanee st 31 December 3,758,608 2,421,527 3602708 2,421,507

27. Other financial liabilities

Group . Company
-in RON- il 2017 FLE 2047
Suppliers of goods amd sendoes B a4l & 580,651 3088 71y 2,680,851
Suppliers of goods placed in leasing agreenents 1,601,213 1,673,650 1,000,213 1,673,050
Advanees received from cistomers 5684862 23,852,080 sh00501 23,852,080
Sundry creditors 1100, 360 Q0,048 5,087,123 £, gl
Total 9,356,376 29,115,437 11,403,640 24,115,437

28. Other liabilities

Group Company
-t BEN- 2 f 111 e 201k __BoLT
Amounts due to personnel 245,972 3,715 245,795 X5
Amounts due for secial secerity and insurance 543.107 402,195 GE0,154 49T, 165
Value adbibec tax due 2278104 . 2,278,104 :
Incoime fax doe - 414, 526 . Q10,526
{hher linhdl ities 343451 6,258 S48 451 6, 2nE
Deferred income 1815 : 1,815 =
Swbventians for lvestments & ges g 288 22425 42,288
Total 3:439,964 1,859,782 B:416,839 1,853,782

The explanatory notes to the finaneial statements from page 7 to page By are an integral part of these financial b8

statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

29. Share capital and management of capital

Share capital

The nominal share capital of the Company registered with the Trade Registry as at 31 December 2018
consisted of 586,742,113 shares with a nominal value of RON 0.1 each (as at 31 December 2017, it
consisted of 450,011,760 shares with a nominal value of RON 0.1 each). The share capital was
entirely paid at 31 December 2018 and at 31 December 2017, The share capital of the Company has
been increased during 2018 by RON 13,673,045 following the merger with ERB Leasing IFN SA.

The shareholding structure st 31 December 2018 was as follows:
Number of ordinary shares owned by the sharcholders

ET

Banca Investment BT Capital

Transilvania 54  SRL Pariners SA  Tolal
Al January 2017 232,724,308 217,287,337 25 450,001,760
At 31 December 2017 a3z 7a4 908 s17.287.937 25 450,011,760
Dumnership percentage (%) 51.71510% 4828481 % ORI %6 . GOGu%
Nominal value of the shares owned {in
RON} 25,078,490 21,798,794 3 45001476
Mew shares issued as a result of the
IRETgeT 136,750,353 = . 136,730,353
At 31 December 2018 369,454,751 217,287,337 25_586,7@113_
Owrership percentage (%) G2.gbTI44% 2ro32858% e Rr i R T Rk
Nomnal value of the shares owned (in
RN 36,045,475 LS e e 3 5B.674.211

The Group is owned, through direct shareholders, in a pereentage of 100% by Banca Transilvania
S5A. In 2002 and 2003, inflation adjustments were made on equity elements amounting to
RON Bg8 333 in compliance with 1AS 29 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” due
tor the fact that the Romanian economy was a hyperinflationary cconomy until 31 December 2003,

Management af capital

From the point of view of capital management, the Company must comply with the provisions of the
Company Law no. 311990 republished and in particular the provisions of article 153" 24 stating that
the value of the net assets of the company, determined as the difference between the total assets and
the total liabilities thereof, must not be reduced to less than half the value of the subscribed share
capital, otherwise the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders must decide on the state of the
company. At the time of preparing these financial statements, the Group and the Company complied
with the above provisions.

30. Legal reserves and other reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the reserves set-up at Group level are in amount of RON 8,203,447
(51 December 2017; RON 5,638.444), and the reserves of the Company are in amount of RON
8,203,447 (31 December 2017: RON 5,638,444}, These include statutory reserves and other reserves
set-up by the Group and by the Company in secordance with the applicable regulations. The legal
reserve is set-up in aceordance with the loeal regulations that require that a minimum of 5% from
the Company’'s net profit must be transferred to a non-distributable reserve account until the reserve
reaches 20% of the Company's share capital. According to Law no, 227/2017 which refers to the
Fiscal Code, art, 26 point (5), the transfer of a provision or a reserve is not considered a reduction or
a cancelation of the respective provision or reserve if another fiscal entity assumes them and keeps
them at the same value before the transfer. Consequently, in order to comply with this regulation,
the Company decided to keep at the same level the reserves transferred from ERB Leasing IFN 5A
as parl of the merger in amount of RON 752,056,

The explonatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page 84 are an integrl port of these financial bg
statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN §.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements
31. Commitments and contingencies

The Group has signed finance lease agreements with its customers for which the goods have not yet
been delivered by the suppliers until the end of the reporting period. As of 31 December 2018, the
value of these contracts is in amount of RON 25,347,612 (2017: RON 27,572,042).

The Group concluded rental agreements for offices and for the storage of recoversd assets from
terminated lease agreements. As of 31 December 2018, the value of these contracts is presented

below:
Group Company
- in RON - zo1f 2017 2018 2017
o 1 yEAr 0BR6.349 H1, 506 G305 i, oh
1- 5 years LO0EATY L 020,341 1,800,572 L0234
[Iver § years g dan . 245847 -
Total 3:223.671 LAZG. 77 3,082,810 L8z0 737
Contingent haldlity

On 15 June 2018, the Company received a request from the Competition Council to provide
information in the investigation initiated on 2o November 2017 against several banks, non-bank
financial institutions, leasing companies, professional associations and employers in the field of
finandial serviess. The subject of the investigation (as it appears from the conclusion of the Bucharest
Court of Appeal no. 33 dated 22 November 2017) is represented by an alleged violation of article 5
(1) of the Competition Law no. 21/1996, respectively of article 101 (1) of the Treaty on the Functioning
of the European Union, through a possible exchange of sensitive information from a competitive
point of view between competing companies that act on the financial leasing market, respectively on
the consumer loans market, companies which are members of the main professional and employers’
associations in the field of financial services.

On 17 October zoig, the Competition Council communicated to the Company and to the other
companies under investigation, the investigation report through which it proposed the application
of fines, calculated as a percentage from the Companys turnover, In the following period,
respectively 30 October — 2 December 2019, the Company’s management will analyse the findings
included in the investigation report and will draft up and send to the Competition Council a
consolidated point of view on the findings within the report. Subsequently, according to the
timetable communicated by the Competition Council, the Company will also participate in the
hearings planned to be held starting 12 December 20149,

At the time of signing these financial statements, given the fact that the investigation is still ongoing
and that a first complete document has been sent for discussions to the parties, the management of
the Company considers that due to the uneertainties related to the completion of the Competition
Counedl investigation it cannot reasonably estimate the impact on the Company.

The cxplanatory notes to the financial statemsents from page 7 to page 84 are an integral part of these financial e
statements
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

32. Related party transactions {continued)

The parties are related if one of these has the ability to control the other party or to exercise
significant influence on the other entity's management process related to financial or operational
decisions.

During 2018, the Group concluded a series of transactions with the related parties, in contractual
terms like its normal activity. The Group and the Company are engaged in related party
transactions with other entities from BT Group, its shareholders and its key management
personnel. All these transactions, including contractual interest rates and collateral conditions,
have been performed at arm’s length, similar with transactions with third parties. For
consolidation purpose the transactions /balances with subsidiaries have been eliminated.

The transactions with other related parties include transactions with the most important
shareholders, the members of the key personnel of the management and the companies where they
are shareholders, and which have a relationship with the Company. The main transactions includes
the leasing of some properties, the contracting of interest bearing loans, the signing of leasing
contracts and the management of bank accounts.

During zo18, the expenses related to the fixed and variable remunerations of the members of the
Board of Directors and of the Executive Management of the Group amounted to RON 2,160,053
(2017: RON 1,128, 441), and for the Company RON 1,721,596 (2007: RON Bog,845).

Compensation for the key personnel of the Group is as follows:

=
i RON - B 2018 my
ol which of which
emplover emplover
of which contributions of which contributions
social to the 3rd social to the grd
BECUTity Pension Recurity Pension
Total contributions  Pillar Tatal contributions Pillar
Short-term emploves
benefits 1,688,538 Ao1,284 3,000 Q40,745 e 84 -
Shere-based
paviments v N Lra . - 146,000
Total
campensations
and benefits 1,768,095 321,284 3000 1,086,745 92,084 -

Compensation for the key personnel of the Company is as follows:

- in RON - = 2018 2017
of which of which
employer cmployver

af which coniributinns of which contributions
social to the grd social to the grd
security Pension security Pension
Total contributions Pillar  Total contributions Pillar

Shori-term emplayes

benefits L3332 GRT 305,742 - G440, 745 02,044 -

Ehare-based pavments i - - 146,000 5 o

Total

compensations and

henefits 1,303,510 Jo5.742 - 1,086,745 g, 084 -

The explanatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page B4 are an integral part of these financial 79
statements
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements
34. Merger with ERB Leasing IFN S.A.

On 24 November 2017, Banca Transilvania $.A. signed the purchase agreement for the acquisition
of the majority stake (99.14675%) held by Eurobank Group in the share capital of Banepost S.A.,
whereby Banca Transilvania scquired the entire stake of Euwrobank Group. According to the
transaction, Banca Transilvania Financial Group has acquired the full equity participations in the
Eurobank Group subsidiaries located in Romania, notably ERB Retail Services IFN S.A, and ERB
Leasing IFN S.A. Following the acquisition of ERB Leasing IFN by BT Group no new equity
instruments have been issued by BT Group, The BT Group took control over these entities on 3 April
2018, the date at which the consideration was transferred in exchange of the stake held by the
Eurobank Group.

On 17 August 2018, as approved by the Extracrdinary General Meetings of Shareholders, the
Company’s shareholders decided on the merger by absorption of SC BT Transilvania Leasing IFN
SA, as ahsorbing entity, with ERB Leasing IFN 8A as absorbed entity.

Following the merger process, the absorbed entity transferred all its assets and liabilities to the
absorbing entity. From a legal point of view, the absorbing entity obtained all the rights and held all
the obligations of the absorbed entity. The effect of the merger process was the dissolution without
liguidation of ERB Leasing IFN SA on 12 October 2018, The merger process was finalised on
11 October 2018,

Both ERB Leasing IFN SA and BT Leasing Transilvania IFN 5A are entities under the common
control of Banca Transilvania SA and the Company made the choice to reflect the merger in its
accounts using the predecessor accounting method in which the assets and liabilities transferred are
recorded at the carrying value in which they are included in the consolidated financial statements of

BT Group.

Al the merger date the fair value of the net assets of the absorbed entity into BT Group consolidated
accounts was RON 32,019,010, which was also reflected into the accounts of the absorbing entity.
The share capital increase recorded as a result of the merger is presented in note 29 and was of RON
13,673,035. The cash taken over from the absorbing entity was of RON 5.108.204 at the date of the
Merger.

The explanatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page 84 sre an integral part of these financisl 75
staterments



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

35. Accounting policies applied before 1 January 2018

The accounting policies applicable to the comparative period ended 31 December 2017, as amended
by IFRS g, is related to the classification, measurement and impairment of financial assets.

(i}  Classification
The Group classifies their inancial assels and liabilities in the following categories:

Loans and receivables which are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not
guoted on an active market, other than those that the Group intend to sell immediately or in the near
future, those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designate at fair value through profit or loss,
those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designate as available-for-sale or those for which the
holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, for reasons other than eredit
deterioration. Loans and receivables comprise lease investments.

Financial assets are valued at cost for equity instruments for which there is no active market for
identical instruments and their fair value cannot be reliably determined. The Company classified in
this category participations in immaterial unconsolidated subsidiaries.

{if)  Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, in case of financial assets and financial labilities.

(it}  Derecognition

The Group derecognize a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows resulting from
the respective asset expire, or when the Group transfer the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows related to the financial asset within a transaction in which all the risks and benefits of

ownership of the financial asset are substantially transferred. Any interest in the transferred
financial assets created or retained by the Group are recognized as a separate asset or liability.

Upon derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or
the carrying amount allocated to the transferred portion of the asset), and the sum of (1) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (2} any
cumulative gain or loss that would be recognized in other comprehensive income, is recognized in
the income statement.

The Group derecognize a financial liability when its contractual settled obligations are cancelled or
BXpiTe.

The Group enter into transactions whereby they transfer assets recognized on the consolidated
financial position, but they retain either all risks or rewards of the transferred assets or a portion
thereof. If all or a substantial portion of risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred asscts
are not derecognized from the consolidated and separate financial position. Transfers of assets with
retention of all risks and rewards or of a substantial portion thereof inchade, for example, securities
lending and repurchase transactions.

() Offsetting

Financial assets and labilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the consolidated and
separate statement of financial position when and only when there is a legal enforceable right to
intention to set off the recognized amounts and there is an settle them on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and clear the liability simultaneously,

The explanatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page 84 are an integral part of these financial G
siatements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN §.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

35. Accounting policies applied before 1 January 2018 (continued)

Incomes and expenses are presented om a net basis only when permitted by the accounting
standards, or as profit and loss arising from a group of similar transactions, such as in the Group's
trading activity.

{12) Amortized cost megsurement

The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liahility
is measured wpon initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount
recognized and the maturity amount, less any reduction for impairments on assets,

(il Fafr value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received after the sale of an asset or the price paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, in principal,
or, in its absence, the price on the most advantageous market to which the Group have access at the
respective date, The fair value of liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Group measure the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price on an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with enough frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an engoing
basis, If there is no quoted price on an active market, then the Group use valuation technigues that
maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs,

The selected valuation technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would consider
when pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of fair value of a financial instrument upon initial recognition is normally the
transaction price — the fair value of a consideration given or received. If the Group determine that
the fair value upon initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is
evidenced neither by a quoted price on an active market for an identical asset or liability, nor based
on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument
is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value upon initial
recognition and the transaction price.

Subsequently, that difference is recognized in the income statement on ar appropriste basks over the
life of an instrument, but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by ohservable market
data or the transaction is closed,

The Group recognize the transfers between hierarchical fair value levels at the énd of the reporting
period during which the change has oceurred.

(vii)  Identification and measurement of impairment

At each date of the consolidated and separate statement of financial position, the Group assess
whether there is objective evidence that finaneial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss are impaired.

A financial asset or 8 group of financial assets is impaired only if there is objective evidence regarding
its impairment as a result of one or more events occurred after the initial recognition (“loss
generating event”), and the loss generating event(s) has an impact on the future cash flows of the
asset that can be estimated reliably.

The explanatory notes to the firancial statements from page 7 to page B3 are an integral part of these financial (i
staternents



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

35. Accounting policies applied before 1 January 2018 (continued)

It is probable that the identification of a single event responsible for the impairment may be diffieult.
Impairment may have been caused by the combined effeet of multiple events. The expected losses as
a result of future events, regardless of their probahility, are nol recognized.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrving
amount and the updated value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

If a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current variable interest rate, specified in the contract.

The asset's accounting value can be decreased directly or by using an impairment account. The
expense with impairment losses is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

If during a future period, an event that took place after the date of impairment recognition generates
a deercase in the impairment expense, the formerly recognized impairment loss is restated either
directly or through the adjustment of an impairment account, The impairment decrease is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial leasing receivables

The Group, based on their internal methodology for impairment assessment, have included
information on the following logs events, as objective evidence for the impairment of financial leasing
receivables:

a.  significant financial difficulty of the borrower (lessee) determined in accordance with the
Group's internal rating system;

b.  abreach of contract, such as a default or delay in interest or principal payments (individually
and in the same group of borrowers);

. the lender, due to economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's or thie lessee’s financial
difficulty, grants to the borrower certain concessions that the lender would not have otherwise
considered, such as rescheduling the interest or principal payments;

d.  there are indications that the client will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization;

credible information indicating a measurable decreaze in the estimated future cash flows of a
group of financial assets, starting from the date of initial recognition, although the decrease
cannot be identified for each individual asset, including:

. unfavourable change in the payment behaviour of the Group's debtors, or

. national or loeal economic cireumstanees that ean be eorrelated with  the
loss/depreciation of the Group’s assets.

The Group assess whether objective evidence of impairment exizsts as described above, individually
for loans to customers and financial leasing receivables that are individually significant, and
individually or collectively for loans to customers and financial leasing receivables that are not
individually significant.

If the Group determine that no objective evidence of impairment exists, as presented above, with
respect to an individually assessed financial aset, whether ﬁign.iﬁua.n'l or not, they shall include the
financial leasing receivables into a group with similar credit risk characteristics and shall collectively
assess them for impairment.

The explanotory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page B4 are an integral part of these financial 78
statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A,

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

35. Accounting policies applied before 1 January 2018 (continued)

The financial leasing receivables individually assessed, for which an individual impairment is
recognized or continues to be recognized, are no longer included in the groups with similar eredit
risk characteristics under the collective assessment.

The caleulation of the present value of the future cash flows of a collateralized financial leasing
receivable reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure, less the eosts for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether foreclosure is probable.

For the purpose of a collective assessment of impairment, financial leasing receivables are grouped
based on similar credit risk characteristics that are indicative of the debtors' ability to pay all
amounts due, according to the contractual terms (for example, grouping based on separate lines of
business, currency, maturity, debt service and so on).

The management considers that these selected characteristics are the best estimates of credit risk
features, being relevant for the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such loans and financial
leasing receivables and being indicative of the debtors” ability to pay all amounts due aceording to
the contractisal terms.

Future cash flows in a group of financial leasing receivables collectively evaluated for impairment
are estimated based on historical loss experience related to loans and financial leasing receivables
with credit risk characteristics like those of the Group.

Historical loss is adjusted based on current ohservable data in order to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss was caleulated and to remove
the effects of conditions in the historical period that do no longer apply.

The Group regularly review the methodology and assumptions used to estimate future cash flows to
reduce differences between estimated and actual losses,

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unlisted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on
a derivative asset that is linked 1o or is to be settled by delivery of such an unlisted instrument, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrving amount of the
financial asset and the updated value of estimated future cash flows by using the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. At derecognition such impairment losses are not reversed in
the income statement.

I'mpairment
Avcording to this policy, the necessary amount of impairment is determined in two stages:

Measurement of individual impairment amounts, ealeulated for clients with total exposure
greater than EUR 2oo,000.

Impairment adjustments are caleulated by difference between the present value of the
exposure and the present value of estimates future cash flows (estimated from the
recoverable amounts of the guarantees)

Measurement of collective impairment amounts for clients which are not analysed
individually or for which no impairment has been determined during individual analysis,

The explanatary nates to the financial statements from page 7 to page B4 are an integral part of these financial 77
statements



BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

15. Accounting policies applied before 1 January 2018 (continued)

Finance lease receivables are considered impaired according to internal policies for identification
and measurement of impaired assets defined by the Group.

As per Group policies, each risk grade has an associated rating, from the lowest risk grade (1) to the
category for which judicial procedures have been started to recover the debt (6). The Group uses
ratings based on days past due both for individual and for collective assessed receivables.

Receivables in the first risk category are those which do not have any delayed payments. Those in
and risk category includes receivables with days past due between 1 1o 15 days. In the 3rd category
the days past due are between 16 to 30 days. In the 4th category the days past due are between 31 to
6o days. In the 5th category the days past due are between 61 o 9o days. In the 6th category the days
past due are over 91 days or receivables for which judicial procedures have been initiated to recover
the debit.

Lease receivables individually impaired are those for which the group considers there is no
probability to recover the principal and acerued interest acconding to lease contractual terms. Those
are analysed and measured based on the recoverable amount as per the Group policy for
identification and measurement of impairment,

Collectively assessed impaired receivables

Collective adjustments for impairment represent the estimate of a loss in the value of the portfolio
of receivables from the lease. The main component of this estimate is a collective one, established
for a group of homogeneous assets from the point of view of the losses that have been recorded but
have not been identified on the claims that may be the suhject of the individual adjustment for
Impairment,

Past due but not impaired receivables

Past due but not impaired receivables are those which have more than one day past due but are not
considered impaired.

Neither past due nor impaired receivables
This category includes all receivables which are not in the other categories above,
Derecognition of lease receivables

The Group derecognises a finance lease receivable (and its corresponding impairment) when it
considers the receivable cannot be recovered. This eonclusion is based on the assessment of
significant changes in the financial position of the debtor, changes which have determined the
impossibility of the debtor to repay the obligation or when the value of the assels taken as guarantee
does not cover the whole obligation. Dereeognition of lease receivables is performed only when all
legal actions to recover the debt have been exhausted.

Lease receivables are derecognised by the Group in the following cases:
s Al the date on which the client pays the receivables according to the lease contractual terms;
= When the assets taken as guarantee are recovered in case of terminated contracts;
«  When all legal actions to recover the debt have been exhausted,

The explanatory notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page Bg are an integral part of these financial Bo
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

36. Reclassification of the consolidated and separate statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate
statement of financial position and consolidated and separate statement
of statement of cash flows for the financial yvear ended 31 December 2017

During the financial year ended on 31 December 2018 the Group and the Company have performed
the following reclassifications and corrections of the previously reported amounts with the purpose
of presenting in a more accurate manner the amounts:

. Funsnlidﬂt&d and separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income

a}  The commissions related to loans from banks and other financial institutions were
corrected and moved from the position "Fee and commission expense” to the position
“Interest expenses”, as they are part of the effective interest rate of the loans,

- in RON - Reported  Reclassified  Adjusted
Interest jncoms 5h,0249,995 - Sl 0ag,505
Interest cxpense 1ty Lt ] i B 10 |
Net Imlnrest inoome —45.550.251 _ (278.008) _ 45.272.343
Fee and commission income 156 555 - LEE.ERL
Fee and commission expense (548 720 73,008 {270,712)
Met fee and conmmission ncome/{expense) (393,169} 278,008 [ﬁqﬁ.;}

b}  Thevalue of the dividend income amounting to RON 2,830,226 was remapped from the
line called “Other net financial income” to the line “Other operating income”, the line
"Other net financial income” being renamed within the consolidated and separate
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as “Net gain/(loss) from
foreign currency translation”,

At the same time the amount of RON 2,469,824 corresponding to net gain from exchange
rate revaluation of transactions was reclassified from “Other operating income” to “Net
gain/(loss) from foreign currency translation”.

Also, the value of the income in the amount of RON 12,798,163 resulting from the
termination of the leasing contracts and the repossession of the leased assets was
remapped from the position "Other operating income” under the line “Net expenses
with adjustments for impairment of financial assets™,

—in RON - _Reported  Reclassified Adjusted

Wet gain,/(bess) from forelgn currency translation sb606348  (3609.402) 3,236,946
Other operating income 20405807 (12.428,761) 74977046
HMet expenses with adjustments for impairment of

financial assets (25466,012]  127o8a63 (12,668.749)

The explanatory notes to the financial stotements from page 7 to page 84 are an integral part of these financisl B1
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BT Leasing Transilvania TFN S.A.

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements

16. Reclassification of the consolidated and separate statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate
statement of financial position and consolidated and separate statement
of statement of cash flows for the financial vear ended 31 December z017
{continued)

)

In order 1o present separately the revenues and expenses related to repossessed assets
from foreclosed leasing contracts the amounts under the line “Net expenses of
repossessed assets” were divided into two new lines, respectively "Revenue from sale of
assets previously leased to customers” of RON 863,700 and "Cost of
inventoryrepossessed from lease agreements” of RON 3,456,498 and in the same time
the amount of RON 2,780,757 representing the net release of provisions for repossessed
assets from foreclosed leasing contracts was reclassified from “Net income/expense
relating to provisions” to *Cost of inventory repossessed from lease agreements”,

Expenses relating to provisions for pensions and similar obligations, as well as expenses
on bonuses for emplovees and provisions for untaken holidays in total amount of
RON 518,215, have been reclassified from the line “Net income with other adjustments
for impairment and other provisions” under the line “Personnel expenses”,

- BON - Reported Reclassified  Adjusted

Met expenses of repossessed nssets (z.502708) 2,592,708

Revenue fromm sale of assets previously leased to

castiners : 363,790 Bh9, 700
Cost of invenbory repossessed trom lease agreements (675,741) (675781}
Net income/expense relating to provisions 1647840 (2.262.544) (614,505}
Personnel expenses §12,330,277) (518,21%) {12,848,4490)

+  Consolidated and separate statement of finaneial position

a)

b}

The line item “Cash and cash equivalents” in amount of RON 25,932,602 has been
divided into two line items: “Cash on hand™ and *Placements with banks”,

- fir RON - Rl:l!l.lr'.‘nl Reclassified  Adjusted
Cash and cash equivalents 25932002  (25032.692) r
Cash on hand - 2,183 183
Flacemens with banks = 25,932,509 G000

From the line item called “Other assets™ in amount of RON 8,526,193 a part of
RON 5,397.074 was reclassified as “Other financial assets” and part in amount of
RON 649,530 was reclassified as “"Equity investments”.

- in RON - “Reported  Reclassified  Adjusted

Crthier asseds 8 moh, 103 (5.463.511) 3,062 680
Criher flnancial assets - 5.503,974 53935974
Equity investments - 3,590 60,539

The explanatery notes to the financial statements from page 7 to page #4 are an integral part of these financial B2
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BT Leasing Transilvania IFN S.A,

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial

statements

36. Reclassification of the consolidated and separate statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate
statement of financial position and consolidated and separate statement
of statement of cash flows for the financial year ended 31 December 2017

(continued)

¢} From the line item “Other liahilities” in total amount of RON 30,069,219,

RON 29,115,437 was reclassified as “Other financial liabilities™.

- in RON -

Other financial liability
Other leakdlitses

Reported

Reclassified Adjusted

30,506,215

. Consolidated and separate statement of cash Mlows

Operating activities

(Fross profif for the year

Adjostments for non-monetary elements
Depreciation expense of premises and equipments and
intinglhie et

Met impairment charges for Ainance lease receivables
Net impairment charge for other assers

Net release of provisions for repossessed inventory
Iterest income from banks

Interest expense

Dividend income

Income tax

Other adjustments for nop-monetary elements
Operating profit before the change in operating asscts
and Hahilities

{ Increase} in net finance lease recedvables

(Incresse) Decrease in other assets

(Increase) Decrease in inventory

Met recedpts of loans and other labilities
Increase/ | Deereasa ] of trade pavables and other Habbli s
Interest expense paid

Income Lax pald

Net cash flow from/(used in)} operating activities

Investment activities

Acquisitions of premises and cquipments and intangible nssets
Proceeds from disposal of premizes and equipments and
intangible assets

Interest received from banks

DHwidenddy received

Net cash flow from investment activities
Financing aetivities

Net receipls of loans and other liabilities

Drvidends paid

Nt eash flow From financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
period

Net increase in cash and cagh equivalents

Cash and eash equivalents ot the end of the period

20,915,437 20115437
[29,115,437) 1,855, 82

Reported Reclassified  Adjusted
2306035 23,116,035
Bag, 727 - Big, 727
{785.242) 24,985,648 24,200,405
1,266 5006 - 1,266,504
¥ {Er'?ﬂ“-?ﬁ?]' fﬂ-?ﬂf‘-m}
[48,780) Havn {48, 260)
10,177,128 302,014 10,479, 14
12,890,226) {2,830,206)
= jlm??gﬁ Q:Hl?:ﬂl'ﬁ
(304 280) 3905417 3511020
31,326,856 20,235,543 60,562.300
[234.533.662) (23.106,533)  (257.640,105)
{1486, 702) 1,266,008 (2zo594])
. 2780259 2,780,259
104,040,084 (104.040,024) -
18,675,511 - 18,675,511
[i6.a77.125) {10a77125)
{3,:221,761] - (3.231,761)
F.7oo.266 (1 1 | EL: 1, e
{914,633} (914,633}
70,616 70,616
48,780 48,780
2,830,226 2,839,226
2,052,080 2052989
194,940,024 194,540,024
(10,000,000) - 10,000,000}
LR AT R i 1 ]
28, 1% 437 - 28,179,437
[2,246.745) 1,848} f2.248 503}
13,953,693 (1,848) 25930844
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Notes to the consolidated and separate financial
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36. Reclassification of the consolidated and separate statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate
statement of finaneial position and consolidated and separate statement
of statement of cash flows for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
{'mnrimmd}l

The most significant reclassification in the consolidated and separate statement of cash flows
is represented by mapping the "Net receipts of loans and other Liabilities”, in amount of RON
104,941,872 from the category “Operating activities” in the category “Financing activities”,

Given the reclassifications above, there is an IFRS requirement to present a third statement
of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period (i.e. 1 January
2017). Management has considerad the nature of the reclassifications in the statement of
financial position and the fact that their main purpose is to increase the level of
disaggregation of the financial statements while there is no impact on total assets, total
liabilities, net assets or reported net results of the Group. The management concluded that it
is sufficient to present the nature of the reclassifications as of 1 Janwary zo17 in the note
above and that omission of any further disclosures, including presenting a complete restated
statement of financial position as of 1 January 2017, is immaterial to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

37. Events after the end of the reporting period

There were no events subsequent to the reporting period that were significant for the Group and the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2018, except for the receipt by the Company of
the investigation report issued by the Competition Council on 17 October 2019, as presented in
Note 31,

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 October 2019 and were signed
on its behalf by:

Ionut Calin Morar Sabina Moldovan
General Manager Financial Manager

The explanatory notes o the financial statements from page 7 to page 84 sre 3n integral part of thess fnancia] 09
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